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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF NIRDHAN UTTHAN LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA
SANSTHA LIMITED

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NIRDHAN UTTHAN
LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED (“the Laghubitta”) which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 Ashadh 2078 corresponding to 15 July 2021, Statement
of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended. and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information,

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the financial statements referred (o above present airly, in all material respects. the financial
position of the Laghubitta as of 31 Ashadh 2078 (15 July. 2021), and its financial performances.
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Laghubitta in accordance with the ethical requirement that are relevant to our audit of the
linancial statements, and we have fullilled our other ethical responsibilities in aceordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and
appropriate to provide basis for our opinion,

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the {Inancial slatements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon. and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have
determined the matters described below 1o be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
repor:

| Key Audit Matters How our Audit addressed the Key .ﬂm-’.ﬁ‘
i _ Matters _

| Impairment of Loans and Advances to | We  tested the Laghubitta's  operating
Customers | effectiveness of key controls to identify loss
events and for determining the extent of
Laghubitia’s poliey for the allawance for | provisioning required against non- performing |
impairment of loens and advarces have | loans & advances.

been based on the application of incurred | The testing of contral included testing of: |
loss model, and Mepal Rastra Bank PN
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regulations, as applicable. It involves

significant management judgement and
estimation. In addition, assessment of
allowances for impairment is iimportant as
carve out provides for higher of the
incurred loss model or NRB's directive.
The carrying wvalue of the loans &
advances to customers can be materially
misstating if management’s judgement
and estimation are inappropriate.

Therefore, considering the significance of
the above matter to the financial
slalements, we have identified this as a
key audit matter

v Controls over correct identification and
classification of non — performing loans and
advances on time-based criteria

Control over accurate computation and
recording of provisions

Control over statistical model used to
calculate the incurred loss in accordance
with incurred loss model.

Control over the monitering of loans and
advances to customers with higher risk
default

Control over the governance and approval
process for provisions including ongoing
rcasscssment by the  Laghubitta’s
Management

In carrying out the substantive procedures. we
selected sample of loans & advances to
customers and checked the repayiment schedules
and tested the classification of non-performing
loans based on overdue period. Assessed the
Management's assumption and judgement for
classification of loans & advances based on
repayment pattern, documentation, assessment
of control over mortgage value of loans &
advances, inspection and discussion with
management,

Our Result:

| We considered the impairment charges on loans

& advances to  customers and  intcrest

recognition to be acceptable.

Information Technology Svstem

The Information Technology of the

Laghubitta involves a large number of

independent and inter-dependent IT
systems that are used that to process and
record & large volume of transactions in
the Laghubitta's activities.

As a result, the Laghubitta™s financial
accounting and reporting  procedure
places a significant level of reliance and
rety on such [T svstems.

Appropriate [T general controls and
application controls are required to ensure
that such IT systems are able to process
the data, as required, completely,

Our audit approach regarding Information
Technology of the Laghubitta is included:

We conducted the detail understating and
lesting regarding the existing system via
enquiry, re-performance and inspection to the
extent of our knowledge.

v' Verification of loan and advance
impairment (provision} based on aging
on a lest check hasis.

On a sample basis, reviewed the reports
generated by the system, On a test basis,
we verified interest revenue and expense

- Azwit et wioaee 2006/6T
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accurately and consistently for reliable booking for loans and deposits using the
financial reporting. laghubitta’s System.

Due to the importance of the impact of the

IT systems and related control

environment  on the  Laghubitta™s | Our Result:

financial reporting process, we have  We considered the IT systems and their relevant
identified testing of such [T systems and | controls to be adequale.

related control environment as a key audit

matter.

The existing system has not been audited

as required.

Other Information

The Laghubitta’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the infoermation included in the Management reporl, Report of the
Board of Directors and Chairman’s statement but does not include the financial statement and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any [orm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there 1s a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required to
report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility and These Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS), and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
slatements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Laghubitta®s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Laghubitta or lo cease operations or has no realistic alternative but 1o
do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Laghubitta’s financial
reparting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exisls,
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
duc to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one
resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls,

» (Jbtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls.

o Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events ar conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Laghubitta’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Laghubitta to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial staterments,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Bank & Financial Institution Act
and Company Act)

{n examination of the financial statements as aforesaid. we report that:

a) We have obtained all information and explanations asked for. which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our examination.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Laghubitta, in so far as appears from our examination of those books of account. et

¢) In our opinion, the returns received from the respective Laghubitta’s branches are | l E
adequate for the audit purpose, though the statements are independently not audited. \J__,

- et aiftfs niadee 2066/6T - 9%,
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d) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and from our examination of the books of account of the Laghubitta, we
have not come across the cases where the Board of Directors or any member thereof or
any employee of the Laghubitta has acted contrary to the provisions of the law relating
to accounts or caused loss or damage to the Laghubitta or committed any
misappropriation or violated any directive of Nepal Rastra Bank..

¢) In our opinion. the loans and advances are charged off as per the write off policy and
with the approval of the authority concern.

f) In our opinion. the business of the Laghubitta has been conducted within its authority.

O‘f’
Anila Shres#fa, FCA _
Poartner P Ll
For Sundar & Co., '
Chartered Accountants e
UDIN :# 211125CA00225tbYVd o heat S
Date: 25" November 2021
9" Mangsir 2078
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Asar 2078

Assels

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment
Net Assets Value per Share

Sharad Midhi Tiwari Santosh Kumar Bhattarai

4.26

Current Year

Cash and Cash equivalent 736.479.913.87 2,337,171,521.42
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 355,849,335.58 294,146,255.53
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 970,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - -
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 23,737,179,086.25 19,887,769,465.56
Investment Securities 4.8 204,639.054.00 200,396,084.00
Current Tax Assels 4.9 - 39.675,265.78
Investment Property 4.10 - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 149.969.918.49 186,138,657.95
Goodwill and Intangible assets 412 - -
Deferred Tax Asscis 4.13 177.369,546.02 63,972,402.26
Other Assets 4.14 209.036,220.65 205,932.367.44

26,540,523,074.86

Liabilities Current Year Previous Year
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 - -
Due to Mepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 417 - -
Deposits from Customers 4,18 15,819,201,068.72 13,341,628,804.91
Borrowing 4.19 6,330,533,330.24 6,945,132 857,89
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 61,719.951.62 -
Provisions 4.20 76,511.00 149,632.40
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 - -
Other Liabilities 4,21 477,184, 788,89 379.473,270.53
Debt Securities [ssued 4.22 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4,23 -

Equity

Share Capital 4.24 1,695,000,000.00 1,500,000,000.00
Share Premium 510,111.00 510,111.00
Retained Earnings 552,110,117.97 575,805,456.92
Reserves 4.25 1,604, 187.195.42 872,501 886.29

3,851,807 424 .40
26,540,523 ,074 86

4,998,540.00
227.25

Previous Year

23,615,202.019.94

2,948 817,454.21
23,615,202,019.94

7.300,532.00
196,59

Ag per our report of even date,

{Chairman) (Direcior)
Devendra Bahadur Raut  Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
(Directar) {Director) (Director}
Anila Shrestha, FCA
Puskar Raj Subedi Mukesh Dahal Janardan Dev Pant Partner, Sundar & Co.
(Manager) (Chief Manager) {Chief Executive QOfficer) Chartered Accountants

Date: 25 Nov, 2021
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

- Azwit et wioaee 2006/6T
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Asar 2078

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income 427 3,743,760,121.17 3,328,160,148.49
Interest Expense 4,28 1,366,690,142.86 1,668,883,463.44
Net Interest Income 2,377.069,978.31 1,659,276,685.05
Fee and Commission Income 429 492 649,010.58 389,620,003.06
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 9.026,328.23 9,117,305.29
Net Fee and Commission Income 483.622,682.35 380,502,697.77
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 2,860,692,660.66 2,039,779,382.82
Net Trading Income 431 - -
Other Operating Income 432 (142,033.80) 3,004,152.44
Total Operating Income 2,860,550,626.86 2,042,783,535.26
Impairment charge/{reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 163,673,100.20 544,676,471.32
Net Operating Income 2,696,877,526.66 1,498,107,063.94
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 042,389,702.77 T82,933,796.30
Other Operating Expenses 435 123,029,408.88 133,186,995.29
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 16,374,838.24 25,456,041.98
Operating Profit 1,615,083,576.78 556,530,230.37
Non-Operating Income 437 580,076.53 1,219,857.47
Non-Operating Expense 4.38 868.694.00 342.921.00
Profit before Income Tax 1,614,794,959.31 557,407,166.84
Income Tax Expense 4.39 425,977,659.03 141,739,738.79
Current Tax 556,845,705.21 129.438,358.92
Deferred Tax {130,868,046.18) 12,301,379.87
Profit for the year 1,188,817,300.28 415,667 428.05
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Financial Institution 1.188,817,300.28 415,667,428.05
Profit for the year 1,188,817,300,28 415,667,428.05
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 70.14 211
Diluted earnings per share 70.14 277
As per our report of even date.
Sharad Nidhi Tiwari Santosh Kumar Bhattarai
{Chairman) (Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
{Director) {Director) {Director)
Anila Shrestha, FCA
Puskar Raj Subedi Mukesh Dahal Janardan Dev Pant Partmer, Sundar & Co.
Manager) {Chief Manager) {Chief Executive Officer) Chartered Accountants

Date: 25 Nov, 2021
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Asar 2078

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit for the year 1,188,817,300.28 415,667,428.05
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
»  (Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments 4,242 940.40 445,160.96
measured at fair value
*  (Gains/(losses) on Revaluation - -
»  Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 53,993,401.00 (65,614,932.00)
» Income tax relating to above items (17,470,902.42) 19,550,931.31
Net other comprehensive income that will not be
rechmiied ts profion Tess 40,765,438.98 (45,618,839.73)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
»  Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
+  Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial
assets of foreign operation) i
¢ [Income tax relating to above items - -
»  Reclassify to profit or loss )
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 40,765,438.98 (45,618,839.73)

Total comprehensive income for the year

1,229,582,739.26

370,048,588.32

Total comprehensive income for the period

1,229,582,739.26

370,048,588.32

As per our report of even date.

Sharad Nidhi Tiwari Santosh Kumar Bhattarai
{Chairman) (Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut  Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
{Director) {Director) (Director)
Anila Shrestha, FCA
Puskar Raj Subedi Mukesh Dahal Janardan Dev Pant Partner, Sundar & Co.
Manager) {Chief Manager) {(Chief Executive Officer) Chartered Accountants

Date: 25 Nov, 2021
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Blttl}"a Sanstha Limlted

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 Asar 2078

Particulars
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Current Year

3,692 466,846.93

Previous Year

3,0B5,164,758.25

Oither assets

Increase’{Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank snd financial mstitutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Fees and other income received 492 649,010.58 3E9,620,003.06
Divided received - -
Receipts from other oporating activitics - 2,502,994.47
Trferest paid (1,366,690,142 86) (967,871,122.99)
Commission and fees paid (9,026,328.23) (9.117,305.29)
Cash payment to employeas (42 389, 702.7T) (719.970,667.100
Other expense paid (123,029 408 88) (139,.969,771.98)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,743,980,274.78 1,640,355 88841
(IncreaselDecrease in operating assets

Due from Mepal Rastra Bank {61,703,080.05) (27.247,540.00)
Placement with bank and financial institations 1570, 00, OO vy 1,244,635,698.79
Other tding assets - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers (3,84%,409,620,69) (506,517,963.27)

(3,103,.853.21)

2477.572.263.81

(126,0338,143.38)

2,292,685,126.76

Net cash Now from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of nvestment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible azsets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Recaipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Recaipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Oither receipt/paymes

Deposit from customers

Borrowings (614,599.527.65) (749,153,9TE.57)
Oither liahilitics (389,730,395.04) (100, 650,445.29)
Met cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (1,266,993,938.06) 3,668,071, 64346
Income taxes paid 364,257,707 .41

(4,242,970,00)

féll?,lm.ﬂli

51,293,274.24

B3, 195,92

(10,263,158.00)

(3%8,072,548.04)

(23, 118,962.80)
1,407481.01

B5,481,429.06
384.209.11

(186,315,789.00)
(701,012,340.45)
8,145,560.44

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Met cash from finencing wetivities {10,263,158,00) (925,673,689 89)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (1,600,601,607.55) 1. 248,833,621.98
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawn 1, 2077 2,337.171,521.42 B8, 337.899.44

T36,479 913,87

Cazh and cash equivalents at Asar end 2078

Sharad Midhi Tiwari Santosh Kumar Bhattarai

(Chairman) (Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut  Top Bahadur Rayamajhi
(Director) (Director)

Puskar Raj Subedi Mukesh Dahal

(Manager) (Chief Manager)
Date : 25 Nov, 2021
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

-

Samrita Tiwari

(Drector)

Janardan Dev Pant

(Chief Execurive Cfficer)

2,337,171,521 42

Az per our report of even date.

Anila Shrestha, FCA
Partner, Sundar & Co.

=it afts Hfaaee 2006/6T .
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Asar 2078

1 Reporting Entity

1.1 Corporate Information

Mirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited (WUBL or "the Financial Institution") has been in operation since 1998,
It is a public limited company, registered under The Companies Act, 1997 (now The Companies Act, 2006), carrying micro-
finance activities. The Financial Institution is licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) in April 1999 to undertake banking
activities under the Development Bank Act, 1996, and started its formal operation in July 1999, Now, operating under the
Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2017 (BAFLA) as a "D" Class Financial Institution.

1.2 Principal Activities of the Financial Institution

The Financial Institution provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance services
to low-income families of Nepal. NUBL follows group lending based on Gramesn Bank, Bangladesh model as well as group
lending based on NUBL developed Self-Reliant model through a network of 181 branch offices spread over all 77 districts
of Nepal,

The Head Office of the Financial Institution is located at Naxal-01, Kathmandu, Nepal. Its ordinary shares are listed with
Mepal Stock Exchange Lid and its stock symbaol is "NUBL".

2 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as prescribed by Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSs), as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASE) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements comply with the requirements of format issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank via Unified Directives to Microfinance Fls, 2077,

The Financial Statements comprise of:

«  Statement of Financial Position stating the financial position of the financial institution as at the end of reporting
pericd;

«  Statement of Profit and Loss stating the financial performance of the financial institution for the reported period
ended;
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the reported period ended;
Statement of Changes in Equity stating all the changes in equity of the financial institution during the reporting
period;
Statement of Cash Flows stating the ability of the financial institution to generate cash and cash equivalents; and
Motes to the Financial Statements comprising summary of principal accounting policies and explanatory notes that
are of significant importance to the stakeholders.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors following Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSg) with allowed carve-owts as issued by the Accounting Standards Board {ASB) Nepal and pronounced by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
financial statements are set out in Note - 3, These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented except for
the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The Financial Institution follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar starting from the first day of
Shrawan (Mid July) of each year to the last day of Asar (Mid July) of the next year. Comparative reporting period figures
have been restated/reclassified wherever necessary by the standards‘regulations and/or for better presentation which has been
disclosed separately, wherever necessary.

The accompanied Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its 281" meeting held on 09%

Mangshir, 2078. The Board acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements of the Financial Institution
and has been recommended for approval by shareholders in the 23™ Annual General Meeting.

I et e l-r
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Financial Statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the functional and presemtation cwrrency of the
Financial Institution. There was no change in the presentation and functional currency during the year under review. The
figures are rounded to nearest rupee unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions, and Judgments

As a result of the uncertainties inherent in business activities, many items in Financial Statements cannot be measured with
precision but can only be estimated. Estimation involves judgements based on the latest available, reliable information. An
estimate may need revision if changes occur in the circumstances on which the estimate was based or as a result of new
information or more experience. During the preparation of the financial statements, NFRS requires the management to make
critical accounting judgments, estimates, and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that have a material impact on
the financial statements.

The underlying assumplion made while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such revision is
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are applied prospectively. Change in estimates is not the
correction of an error, Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes
of accounting estimates in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates have been applied.

2.5 Changes in Accounting policies

Generally accepted accounting policies are followed consistently throughout the accounting period, so as to present the
general-purpose financial statements ensuring comparability both with the entity’s financial statements of previous periods
and with the financial statements of other comparable entities, However, the changes when required by NFRS or due to the
requirement that resulis in the financial statements providing more reliable and more relevant information about the effects
of the transactions, other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows are made
and the changes are applied retrospectively.

2.6 New standards in issue but not yet effective

As per the guidelines of the ICAN, When Intemational Accounting Standard Board revises, amends or withdraws
International Accounting Standards, IFRSs, IFRIC or SIC, such revisions, amendments and withdrawals shall accordingly
be treated as effected with immediate revision, amendment and withdrawal in NFRS by ASB as well, to the extent not in
conflict with existing national laws. Few carve outs on applicable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the financial institution. Further, a number of new standards and
amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been izssued by International Accounting Standard Board after
the pronouncements of NFRS with varving effective dates. Those become applicable when Accounting Standard Board Mepal
incorporates them within NFRS.

2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted

In preparing financial staternents, Standards and pronouncements issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal has been
adopted. Management has used its assumptions and understandings for the preparation of financial statements under
compliance with NFRS, however certain interpretations might vary regarding the recognition, measurement, and other related
provisions where the standards are not specific and not clear.

2.8 Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Financial Institution considers the
discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been
considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the Cash Flows of the Financial Institution. Market Interest Rate
on Staff loans except housing loan has been precluded from discounting as management considers the current interest rate as
market rate under the same class of loans. Housing loan has been considered under EIR method. Management considers
Lease payvments under an operating lease to be recognised as an expense when accrued as the payments to the lessor are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors expected inflationary cost
increases.

3 Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied by the Financial Institution in the preparation of these financial statements are
presented below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items in the statement of
financial position:

1.. 2t atte st souoror, [
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Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.
Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less
the fair value of the plan assets,
Investment securities has been measured at fair value under NFRS 9 "Financial Instruments®.
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value.

«  Financial assets and financial liabilitics held at amortized cost at measurcd using a rate that is a close approximation
of effective interest rate.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in notes.

Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are netted off only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NFRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented separately
in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they are material. Such
presentation of line items is consistent with the format issued by NRB.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions,
money at call, short notice and highly liguid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the management of its
short-term commitments.

3.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements that result in future cash inflows or from owning equity
instruments of another entity. Since financial assets derive their value from a contractual claim. These are non-physical in
form and are usually regarded as more liquid than other tangible assets. Common examples of financial asscts are cash, cash
equivalents, bank balances, placements, investments in debt and equity instrumenis, derivative assets and loans and advances.

Financial liabilities are obligations that arise from contractual agreements and that require settlement by way of delivering
cash or another financial asset. Settlement could also require exchanging other financial assets or financial liabilities under
potentially unfavourable conditions. Settlement may also be made by issuing own equity instruments, Common examples of
financial liabilities are due to banks, derivative liabilities, deposit accounts, money market borrowings and debt capital
instruments.

Recognition

The Financial Institution initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provigsions of the instrument. The Financial Institution initially
recognize loans and advances, deposits, and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that thev are originated
which is the date that the Financial Institution becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in
equity instruments, bonds, debentures, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase
are recognized on trade date at which the Financial Institution commits to purchase/acquire the financial assets, Regular
purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized
at their cost value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the respective classification.

Classification

i. Financial Assets

The Financial Institution classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis
of the Financial Institution’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

f.  Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Financial Institution classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

-la;eﬁmﬁwmﬁaﬁmm; .-
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a) The assct is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Pavments of
Principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured at fair
value are further classified into two categories as below:
a)  Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets arc classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable o
the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such asscts are subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Financial Institution
makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other
comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

ii. Financial Liabilities
The Financial Institution classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a)  Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the
acquisition are recoghized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized
at profit or loss,

b} Financial liabilitier measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured
at amortized cost using effective interest method,

Measurement

i. Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Financial Institution can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis) to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments,
This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at
fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. The comulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Financial
Institution s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment and the amount of
dividend can be measured reliably,

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL unless the Financial Institution irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments
which are not held for trading. Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost eriteria or FYTOCT criteria are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at
FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recoghition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring asscts or liabilitics or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different
bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
re-measurement recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when
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the Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment and the

amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

iii. Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilitics arc classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated as at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities at FWVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the *Other [ncome” line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized
in Statement of Profit and Loss, The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained camings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

iv. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are non-held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The camrying amount of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs
of an asset is incorporated in the ‘Finance Expenses’ line item,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition

De-recognition of financial assets

The Financial Institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
assct expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Institution neither transfers nor retaing substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the Financial
Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of;

(i) The consideration received, and

(i) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in retained earnings.

The Financial Institution enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial Position,
but retaing either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or
substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets with
retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions.

De-recognition of financial labilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability
and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss,

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to
which the Financial Institution has access al that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
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When available, the Financial Institution measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Financial Institution uses valuation technigues that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction,

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 valuations arc those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or
similar instrumenis in inactive markeis and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are
observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on observable
market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received. If the Financial Institution determines that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability (Level-1 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets (Level-
2 valuation), then the financial instrument iz initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable
market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability {(Level-1 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair value is recognized in
profit or loss immediately.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Financial Institution assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or the group
of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or the group of financial assets
is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s),
and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably,

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include sipnificant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
default or delinquency by a borrower, project of the borrower having negative cash flows or negative net worth, restructuring
of a loan or advance by the Financial Institution on terms that the Financial Institution would not otherwise consider,
indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptey, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other
observable data relating to the group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Financial Institution, In addition, for an investment in an
equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Financial Institution considers to restructure loans rather than take
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions. Once
the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the EIR method and the loan is no longer considered
past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payvments are
likely to occur, The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the
loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Financial Institution considers evidence of impairment for
loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Financial Institution first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant
and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be acerued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past cxperience of portfolio behaviour, In
assessing collective impairment, the Financial Institution uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incwrred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic adjustment
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Probability of default pattern
and loss piven default pattern are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.
Impairment has been considered as per carve-out issued by ICAN where impairment as per NFRS or as per NRB Directive
whichever is higher.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Financial Institution. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later
recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘non-operating income”.

3.4 Trading asscts
There were no trading assets held by the Financial Institution during the vear,

3.5 Property and Equipment

a} Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to
the Financial Institution and the cost of the assct can be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:

* Cost of materials and direct labour;

* Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and

» Capitalized borrowing cost,

Property and equipment are measured at cost less acoumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Neither
class of the property and cquipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure will flow to the
entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or losses
on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

b} Grant Assets

The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital reserve of equal amount.
The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this reserve till the useful life of assets. The balance of capital reserve
depicts at the same proportion of the depreciation.

c} Depreciation

Property and Equipment's are depreciated from the date they are available for use on Straight Line method over the estimated
useful life as determined by the Management. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of
depreciation is ceased from earlier of: the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or from the date of
derecognition, The estimated useful life of significant items of property and equipment for current year and comparative
period are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life
Building 30 Years
Computer and Accessorics 5 Years
Vehicles 5 vears
Fumiture, Fixture and Equipment's 10 Years

Aszsets costing less than NPR 3,000 are fully expensed in the year of purchase.

The additional information on gross carmying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated
impairment loss, if any) is presented in the Note-4 separately.

3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets
There is no Goodwill and Intangible Asscts held by the Financial Institution during the vear,

3.7 Investment Property
There is no Investment Property held by the Financial Institution during the year,
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3.8 Income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and
deferred taxes. The Financial Institution applies NAS 12 — “Income Taxes™ for the accounting of Income Tax. Income tax
expense is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or directly in other
comprehensive income, Tax expense relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is recognized in
the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or tax loss) for
the reporting period, and any amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous years. It is measured
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

The Financial Institution has determined tax provision for the reported period based on its accounting profit for that period,
and incorporating the effects of adjustments for taxation purpose as required under the Income Tax Act, 2058 and
amendments thereto, using a corporate tax rate of 30%.

Current tax for current and prior periods shall, to the extent unpaid, be recognized as liability. If the amount already paid in
respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those perieds, the excess shall be recognized as an assct.
Moreover, the benefit relating to a tax loss can be carried back to recover current tax of a previous period shall be recognized
a5 an asset, Explanatory information on current tax calculation is stated in Note-4.9,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:

(a) deductible temporary differences;

(k) the carry forward of unused tax losses; and

(c) the carry forward of unused tax credits.

Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
or liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the comesponding amounts used for taxation purposes,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and carried
forward unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be claimed. Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable
temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when they will be reversed, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date. Deferred tax income or expense relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income,

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets shall reflect the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrving amount of its assets
and liabilities.

The income taxes levied to the Financial Institution relates to the same taxation authority and the taxation laws permit the

entity to make or receive a single net payment. Therefore, the Financial Institution has legally enforceable right to set off a
current tax asset against a current tax liability, Explanatory information on deferred tax calculation is stated in Mote - 4.13.

3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued, and subordinated liabilities
The Financial Institution's deposits consist of money placed into the Financial Institution by its customers and members,
These deposits are made to deposit accounts such as term deposit accounts, savings deposit accounts,

3.10 Provisions
The Financial Institution applies NAS 37 — “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets” in the accounting of
provisions.

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A provision shall be recognized when:

{a) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

(b} it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to  settle the obligation; and

{c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If these conditions are not met, no provision shall be
recopnized.
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The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:
# a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
= present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because;
o It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or
o The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

A contingent assct is a possible assct that arises from past events and whose cxistence will be confirmed only by the
ocourrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Financial Institution and can be
measured reliably. The Financial Institution applies NAS 18 — “Revenue” in the accounting of revenue unless otherwise
stated.

The basis of income recognition is mentioned below:

i. Interest income

Interest income is recognized under an accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in the profit or loss for all
interest-bearing financial assets except loans categorized as bad loans measured at amortized cost. Effective Interest Rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash paymenis through the expected life of a financial asset
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Effective Interest Rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost
of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income and service income over the relevant period.

NFRS Reguirement

MFRS reguires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those classified at fair value
through profit or loss. The effective interest method is 8 method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating the interest income and service income over the expected life of the financial instrument. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
ingtrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carryving amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The
cffective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by cstimating the future cash flows
after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts
expected to be paid or received by the Financial Institution including expected penalties that are an integral part of the overall
return. Direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, issue, or disposal of financial instruments are also taken
into account in the calculation. Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result
of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows to measure
the impairment loss.

Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Financial Institution has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit on individual
loan products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the Financial Institution charges on the loans
and applying the EIR method would not be practical. Hence, initial service fees have been recognized during the period when
such income accrues rather than being included within the component of interest income under the ETR. method.

Accrued Interest has been accounted as per "Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019" issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank, in July 2019, Interest from Loans where contractual payments of principal and for interest are not more than 3 months
in arrears are considered as Performing loans and Interest Income has been booked accordingly, Remaining Interest Income,
in relation to Non-Performing Loans, has been treated as Interest Suspense and accounted accordingly.

Out of Total Interest Accrued of Rs. 283,486,408 during the financial year, Interest Accrued from Performing Loan is Rs,
204,506,578 (Collateral Based is Rs. 36,133,360 and Collateral Free is Rs. 168,373,218 ) and from Non-Performing Loan is
Rz, 78,979,830 (Collateral Based is Rs, 17,073,030 and Collateral Free is Rs, 61,906,800 ).

i, Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that is integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset ig included in the measurement
of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fees, service charges are recognized as
and when the related services are performed.
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i, Dividend income
A dividend on investment in a resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income is presented in other operating income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss, or other revemnue based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.

iv. Net Trading Income
The Financial Institution does not have Net Trading Income.

¥. MNet income from other financial instruments at fair value throungh profit or loss

The Financial Institution presents income other than those presented under interest income, fees and commission income
under this heading. Income recognized here includes items such as foreign exchange revaluation gain or loss; dividend on
equity investments that are measured at FVTOCT; gain or loss on disposal of property and equipment; gain and loss on
disposal of investment property; and gain or loss on disposal of investment securities except for equity investments measured
at FVTOCIL

3.12 Interest expense

Interest expenses on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest rate
method. Interest expenses on all trading liabilitics are considered to be incidental to the Financial Institution’s trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.13 Employees Benefits
Emplovee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. The
Financial Institution’s remuneration package includes both short term and long-term benefits and comprises of: salary,
allowances, paid leave, accumulated leave, gratuity, provident fund and annual statutory bonus. The Financial Institution
applies NAS 19 — “Employee Benefits” in accounting of all emplovee benefits and recognizes the followings in its financial
statements:
« g liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employvee benefits to be paid in the future; and
« an expense when the Financial Institution consumes the economic benefit arising from service provided by an
employee in exchange for emplovee benefits.

Explanatory information on personnel expense is stated in Note-4.34,

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term emplovee benefit obligations are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected

to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. This includes all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period):

» wages, salaries and social security contributions;

» paid annual leave and paid sick leave;

* non-monetary benefits
The Financial Institution shall recognize the undiscounted amount of short-term emplovee benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service.

A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Act,
pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably
under short term employee benefits,

b))  Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

Under defined contribution plans the Financial Institution’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount
that it agrees to contribute to the fund. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered by emplovees. Pre-
paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in future payments is
available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the end of the period
in which the emplovee render the service are discounted at their present value.

Financial Institution provides “Employees Provident Fund™ to the employees entitled to receive benefits under the
provident fund act, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Financial Institution contribute
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monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grade). Financial Institution does not
assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

The Financial Institution provides Gratuity Plan as defined benefits to its emplovees. These benefits are post-
employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service, These benefit plans are funded whereas the
Financial Institution makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum payments
to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an
amount equivalent defined days® eligible salary payable for each completed vear of service.

Gratuity

The Financial Institution provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee
Service Byelaws of the Financial Institution. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employces at
retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined
days’ eligible salary payable for each completed years of service. The Financial Institution accounts for the liability
for gratuity as per the actuarial valuation.

¢}  Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Financial Institution is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Financial Institutions
made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances
can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are
discounted to their present valoe,

d)  ther Long-Term Benefits
The Financial Institution’s net obligation in respect of long-term emplovee benefits, other than gratuity, is the
amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The Financial
Institution has recognized accumulated leave liability as other long term employee benefits. The discount rate is the
average vicld at the reporting date on current government bonds.

3.14 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or containg a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement. The Financial Institution availed the carve outs as per NAS 17 "Lease" as the management considers Lease
payments under an operating lease to be recognised as an expense when accrued as the payments to the lessor are structured
to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

3.15 Share capital and reserves

The Financial Institution applied NAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation” to determine whether the financial
instrument is either a financial liability or equity. A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset, or the variable number of its own cquity shares to the holder of the instruments or to exchange financial asscts
or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are recognized when the owner's right to receive payment is established.

3.16 Earnings per share including diluted

Basic earnings per equity share are computed as per NAS 33 “Eamings per Share”. Basic earnings per equity share are
computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the yvear. Bonus
shares involve the issue of shares without any consideration and hence do not change the resources available to the entity.
Accordingly, adjustments of bonus shares issued have been done.

The entity does not hold any dilutive potential ordinary shares, and hence the Basic EPS itself is the Diluted EPS.

The entity has no discontinued operation and so the amounts per share for the continued and discontinued operation have
not been reported.

3.17 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about resource
allocation to each segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

It e l-r



eémmmﬁmmm
S

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

The Financial Institution has identified segments based on the geographic locations of its offices in the seven provinces of
the country, Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the
respective segment. All business transactions of business units located in a particular province are grouped together,

4 Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent includes the total amount of cash at vault, balances with other bank & financial institutions, money
at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets i.e., Treasury Bills, with original maturities of three months or less
from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and used in the management of
short-term commitments and Cash in Transit is presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash in hand 43,606,403.50 32,259.155.00
Balances with B/Fls 117,105,315.55 142.474,064.00
Money at call and short notice 545,768,194.82 | 2,162,438,302.42
Other 30,000,000.00 -
Total T736,479,913.87 | 2,337.171.521.42

4.2 Statuiory Balances and Due from Nepal Rasira Bank

Statutory Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve, securitics purchased from
MNepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank is presented as
follows:

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Statutory balances with NRB 354,806,787.53 293,103,707.53
Statutory balances with BFIs - -
Securities purchased under resale agreement - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 1,042 548.05 1,042 548.00
Total 355,849,335.58 294.146,255.53

4.3 Placements with Financial Institutions
Placements with domestic banks and financial institutions with original maturitics of more than three months from the
acguisition date are presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Placement with domestic Fls QT0,000,000,00 400,000,000.00
Less: Allowances for impairment - -
Total 970,000,004.00 400,000,000.00

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Financial Institution does not have any Derivative Financial Instruments.

Previous Year

Particulars

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Curmrency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Current Year

Total

AL
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4.5 Dither Trading Assets

The Financial Institution does not have any Trading
Particulars

Treasury bills

Government bonds

MNRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds

Equities

Other

_ &
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Current Year Previous Year

Total

Pledged

Mon-Pledged

4.6 Loans and advances to MFIs & Cooperatives

The Financial Institution does not have any Loan and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives.

Particulars

Loans to microfinance institutions
Loans to Fls

Loans to cooperative

Less; allowance for impairment other
Less: allowance for impairment

Current Year Previous Year

Total

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal

Amount written off

Current Year

Balance as Asar end

4.7 Loans and advances to Customers

Total Loans and advances extended to the customers and amortized cost of staff loans; less the amount of impairment loss is
presented under this head. Accrued Interest Receivable on performing loans have been considered under loans and advances
measured at amortized cost. Impairment on loans and advances to customers are assessed individually and collectively as per
incurred loss model which is compared with the loan loss provision prescribed by NRB Directives. Higher of the loss as per
incurred loss model and NEB directive is considered for impairment.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost
Less: Impairment allowances

24,804,232,108.91
1,067,053,022.66

20,791,149,387.56
903,379,922.00

Collective impairment 679 583 60274 687.406,305.00
Individual impairment 3BT 46941992 215,973,617.00
Net Amount 23,737,179.086.25 | 19.887.769.465.56
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 23.737.179.086.25 | 19,887.769.465.56
4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Product

Term loans - -

Short term, term loan
Long term, term loan

Hire purchase loans
Personal Residential Loans

522.162,586.58 330.357,897.56

Staff loans

Other 24 077,562 944 33 | 20,150,817,707.00
Sub-Total 24,599,725.530.91 | 20,481,175.604.56
Interest receivable 204.506,578.00 309.973,783.00
Grand Total 24,804,232,108.921 | 20,791,149,.387.56

- Azwit et wioaee 2006/6T
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4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral
Particulars

Current Y ear

Previous Year

Secured

Immovable assets

Government guarantee

Collateral of Government securitics
Collateral of Fixed Deposil Receipl
Group guarantee

Personal guarantee

Other collateral

436,389,947.58

20,954,733,629.39

3,413,108,531.94

20,930,877.76

T28,000.00
16,782,940,126.24

3,986,550,383.56

Sub-Total 24,804,232,108.91 | 20,791,149,387.55
Unsecured - =
Grand Total 24,804,232,108.91 | 20,791,149,387.55

4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 215,973,617.00 193,723,188.00
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 171,495,802.92 2225042900
Recovenes/reversal during the vear - -
Write-offs - -
Other movement - -
Balance at Asar end 387,469,419.92 215,973,617.00

11 allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 687,406 ,305.00 164,980,263.00
Impairment loss for the yvear:

Charge/(reversal) for the year (7,822,702.26) 522.426,042.00
Other movement - -
Balance at Asar end 679,583,602.74 687,406,305.00
Total allowances for impairment 1,067,053,022.66 903,379,922.00

4.8 Investment Securities
Investment in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in two categories i.e., investment securities
measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 190,000,000,00 190,000,000.00
Investment in equity measured at FWVTOCI 14.639,054.00 10,396,084.00
Total 204.639,054.00 200.396,084.00

4.8.1 Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

Disclosures in respect of investment in povernment bond which are measured at amortized cost are as follows:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Mepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

190,0:00,000.00

190,000,000.00

Total

190,000,000.00

190,000,000.00

=
o
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Disclosures in respect of investment in shares and debentures/bonds of other companies/institutions are as follows:

Particulars

Current Y ear

Previous Year ||

uity instruments
Quoted equity securities 11,129,054.00 6,886,084.00
Unguoted equity securities 3,510,000.00 3,510,000.00
Total 14,639,054.00 10,396,084.00

4.8.3 Investment relating to investment in equities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cost

Fair Value

Fair Value

Investment in quoted equity

NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1 6,955 640.00 | 11,129,054.00 6,955,640.00 | 6,886,084.00
Investment in ungquoted equity

Prabhu Capital Ltd. 1,500,000.00 | 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00
Center for Micro-Finance Nepal 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Mepal Finsoft Company Ltd 2,000,000.00 | 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 | 2.000,000.00
Total 10,465,640.00 | 14,639,054.00 10,465,640.00 | 10,396,084.00

4.9 Current Tax Assels

Advance tax deposited by the financial institution less tax liabilities as well as income tax liabilities for the purpose of current

tax, prior period tax including fees are presented under this head,

Particulars

Current tax assets

Current year income tax assets
Tax assets of prior periods

Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities
Tax liabilities of prior periods

Current Year
467,579,860.59
467,579,860,.59

519,299,812.21
529,299.812.21

Previous Year
169,113,624.70
169,113,624.70

129.438,358.92
129,438,358.92

Total

{61,719,951.62)

39.675,265.78

4.10 Investment properties
The Financial Institution does not have any investment properties.

Particulars

Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawn 1, 2077
Addition/disposal during the year

Met changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Current Y ear

Previous Year

Net Amount

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawn 1, 2077
Addition/disposal during the vear
Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount

Total

Azwit et wioaee 2006/6T
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4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

&

The Financial Institution does not have any goodwill and intangible assets.

Software

Total 31" Asar
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya 5anstha Limited

Taotal Asar End

FParticulars Groodwill Purchased

Caost

As on Shrawn 1, 2076
Addition during the Y ear
Acquisition
Capitalization

Digposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Developed

1078

2077

Balance as on Asar End 2077 -

Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Bevaluation

Balance s on Asar End 2078 -

Amortization and Impairment
As on Shrawn 1, 2076
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Dsposals

Adjustment

As on Asar End 2077 -

Imipairment for the year
Amortization charge for the Year
Dizposals

Adjustment

As on Asar End 2078 -

Capital Wotk in Progress

Net Book Value

As on Asar End 2076 -

As on Asar End 2077 -

As on Asar End 2078 -

4.13 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the book values of financial assets/liabilities

asscts/liabilitics using the tax rate of 30%.

Particulars

Deferred Tax
Aggets

Current Year

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

and tax base of

Deferred Tax

Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securitics

Property & equipment

Employees' defined benefit plan

Actuary Gain

168,663,975.32

32,764,815.00

1,272, 882,12
6,588,341 88

16,198,020.30

(1,272,882.12)
(6,588,341 88)
168,663,975.32
(16,198,020.30)

Leave Provisions - 32,764, 815.00
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 201,428, 790.32 | 24,059,244.30 177,369,546.02
Deferred tax on carry-forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred lax due lo changes in lax rate - - -
MNet Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Asar end 2078 201,428,790.32 24,059,244.30 177.369,546.02
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawn 1, 2077 63,072 402 26
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 113,397,143.76
Deferred tax expense/{income) recognized in profit or loss (130,868.046.18)
Deferred tax expense/{income) recognized in other comprehensive income 17,470,902.42

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

- Azwit et wioaee 2006/6T




e , Terder Icemer orgfda fadia dven feifdRes

lllldhln I.Itlhln I..l,lmblttl BI“III SII'I.l-ﬂ'II |.ll'lltiﬂ/

Particulars

P

Deferred Tax
Assets

Previous Year
Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred Tax

Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securitics 20,866.92 - 20,866.92
Property & equipment (1,927,565.58) - (1,927,565.58)
Emplovees' defined benefit plan 46,194,621.32 - 46,194,621.32
Actuary Loss 19,684,479.60 . 19,684 475,60
Lease Liabilities - - -
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 63,972,402.26 = 63.,972.402.26
Deferred tax on carry-forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
MNet Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Asar end 2078 63,972.402.26 - 63,972.402.26
Deferred tax (asset)/iabilities as on Shrawn 1, 2077 56,722 850,82
Origination/{Reversal) during the year 7,249.551.44
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss 12,301,379.87

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

(19,550,931.31)

4.14 Other Assets

Other assets include accounts receivable, prepayvment and deposit, stationary stock, staff advance,

remit in transit and inter-branch balances which are presented as follows:

client protection fund,

Particulars

Assets held for sale
Other non-banking assets
Bills receivable

Current Year

5,995,562.22

Previous Year

24.494,701.47

Accounts receivable
Accrued income - -
Prepayments and deposit 6,683,639.11 126,373,831.59
Income tax deposit - -
Deferred employee expenditure
Other
Stationary Stock 5,394, 710,81 5,063,834.38
Staff Advance 142 801,423.21 -
Other 48, 160,885.30 50,000,000.00
Total 209,036,220.65 205,932,367.44

4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

The Financial Institution does not have any dues to bank and financial institutions.

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Bormrowing from BFIs
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other

Total

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

The Financial Institution does not have any dues to Nepal Rastra Bank.,

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Refinance from NRBE

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Other payable to NRB

Total

=it afts Hfaaee 2006/6T .
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4.17 Derivative financial instruments
The Financial Institution does not have any derivative financial instruments.

Particulars Current ¥ car Previous Year
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward cxchange contract - -
Others - -

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - i
Forward exchange contract - z
Other = =
Total - -

4.18 Deposits from customers
The Financial Institution does not have any institutional deposit customers. Individual customers include saving deposits
and term deposits which are presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Y ear
Institutional customers:
Term deposits = -
Call deposits - -
Other - -
Individual customers:
Term deposits 125,098,340.05 105,058,810.52
Saving deposits
15,694,102,728.67 | 13,236,569,994 39
Savings from Members - -
Other - -
Total

15,819,201,068.72 | 13,341,628,804.91

4.19 Borrowing
Borrowings from domestic banks and financial institutions as well as foreign borrowings are presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Damestic Borrowing

Nepal Government - -
Other licensed Institutions 6,265,841,023.49 | 6,863,905,093.89
Other - -
Sub total 6,265,841,023.49 | 6.863,905,093.89
Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Banks - -
Other Institutions 64,692,306.75 81,227,764.00
Sub total 64,692 306.75 81,227, 764.00
Total 6,330,533,330.24 | 6,945,132.857.89

4.20 Provisions
Provisions for expenses made by the Financial Institution are presented as follows:

Particulars Current Y ear Previous Year
Provizions for redundancy - -
Provizion for restructuring = 5

Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Omerous contracts = =
Other 76,511.00 149,632 .40
Tuotal 76,511.00 149,632.40

- dEt s mfddes 2066/6T - ¥y
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4.20..1 Movement in Provisions

Particulars

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Current Year Previous Year

Balance at Shrawn 1, 2077
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the vear
Provigions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

149,632.40 173,033.56

73,121.40 23.401.16

Balance at Asar end 2078

76,511.00 149,632.40

4.21 Other liabilities
The details of other liabilitics are presented as follows:

Particulars

Liability for employess defined benefit obligations
Liability for long-service leave
Short-term employee benefits

Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit

Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant income
Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease
Emplovee bonus pavable

Current Year Previous Year
40,520,329.90 51,533,002.94
109, 216,050,000 105,031,947.00
25,082.519.12 30,058,952.30
48,644,501.85 68,260,678.09
4,333,025.77 4,239 488,61
2,661,696.61 2,935,715.91
57,823,601 98 56,472,900.63

179.421,662.15 42,910,932 .46
9.481.401.51 18,029,652.59

477,184,788.89 379,473,270.53

4.21.1 Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position includes 3,55,779.28 in plan assets from benefit distribution

by CIT for F.Y 2077/78.
/Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of funded obligations

Total present value of obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recopnized liability for defined benefit obligations

616,851,113.00 597,391,510.00
616,851,113.00 597,391,510.00
575,975,004.00 543.861,120,00
40,876,109.00 53,530,390.00
40,876,109.00 53,530,390.00

4.21.2 Plan Assets

Plan assets comprise of the following:
Particulars

Flan assets comprise

Equity securitics

Government bonds

Bank deposit

Other

Current Y ear Previous Year

575,975,004.00 543.861,120.00

Tuotal

575,975,004.00 543,861,120.00

Actual retum on plan assets

4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1, 2077
Actuarial losses

Benefits paid by the plan

Current service costs and interest

597,391,510.00 489 634,535.00
(37,372,269.00) 46,931,521.00
(18,980,998.0:0) (8,832.530.00)

75.812,870.00 69.657,984.00

Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 2078

616,851,113.00 597,391,510.00

=it afts Hfaaee 2006/6T .
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4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1, 2077 543,861,120.00 415,186,906.00
Contributions paid into the plan 10,000,000.00 137,506,744.00
Benefits paid during the vear (18,980,998.00) (8,832,530.00)
Actuarial (losses)/gains 16,621,132.00 (18,683.411.000
Expected return on plan assets 24,473,750.00 18,683,411.00
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 2078 575,975,004.00 543.861,120.00

4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss

Particulars
Current service costs

Current Year
48,223.179.00

Previous Year
46,865,029.00

Interest on obligation 3,115,941.00 4,109, 544 .00
Expected return on plan assets . o
Total 51,339,120.00 50,974,573.00

4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars
Actuarial (gain)/loss

Current Year
(53,993,401.000

Previous Year
635,614,932.00

Total

(53,993,401.00)

65,614,932.00

4.21.7 Actuarial assumptions

Particulars

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increases
Withdrawal rate

Current Year
5.13%
5.13%
3.25%
2.85%

Previous Year
4.50%
4,50
3.25%
2.85%

4.22 Debt securities issued
The Financial Institution has not issued any debt securities.

Particulars

Diebt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Diebt securities issued at amortized cost

Current Year

Previous Year

Total

4.23 Subordinated Liahilities
The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated liabilities.

Particulars

Redeemable preference shares
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liability component)
Other

Current Year

Previous Year

Total

4.24 Share capital
Details of equity shares is presented as follows:

Particulars

Ordinary shares

Convertible preference shares (equity component only)
Irredeemable preference shares {equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only)

Current Year
1,695, 000,000 00

Previous Year
1,500, 000,000 00

Total

1,695,000,000.00

1,500,000,000.00
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4.24.1 Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Authorized Capital

25000000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Issued capital

16950000 Ordinary share of Rs, 100 each
Subscribed and paid-up capital

16950000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Total

Previous Year
2,000, 000, 000,00

Current Year
2,500,000, 000,00

1.695,000,000.00 | 1,500,000,000.00

1,695,000,000.00 | 1,500,000,000.00

1,695,000,000.00 | 1,500,000,000.00

4.24.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

Particulars

Current Y ear Previous Year

Percent Amount Percent Amount

Domestic ownership (Promoter) 41.88% 709,928,068.00 41.90% 628,516,008.00
Mepal Government - - - -
A class licensed institutions 24.62% 417,347,293.00 24.62% 369,333,8R7.00
Other licensed institutions - - - -
Other Institutions 10.00% 169,422,069,00 9.44% 141,543,177.00
Other 7.27% 123,158,706.00 T.84% 117,638,944.00
Domestic ownership (Public) 49.02% 830,845,001.00 49.00%: 735,000,000.00
Mepal Government - - - -
A class Licensed Institutions 4.11% 69, 580, 830,00 12.03% 180,384,727.00
Other licensed Institutions 0.15% 2,543,743.00 0.03% 481,693.00
Other Institutions 16.80% 284,676,401.00 13.54% 203,135,450.00
Other 27.97% 474,044 ,027.00 23.40%% 350,998,130.00
Foreign ownership (Promoter) 9.10% 154,226.,931.00 9.10% 136,483,992.0:0
Foreign ownership (Public) = = = =
Total 100,00 %% 1,695,000,000,0: 100, 00%% 1,500,000,000.00

Details of Shareholding holding more than 0.5%

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

”:Ih::lur Mo. of Shares Amount ];’”':_Ir No. of Shares Agriciant
Domestic ownership (Fromoter)
Mabil Bank Limited 9.39% 1,592,157.01 | 159,215,700.97 9.39% 1,408 988,87 140,898, 886,97
Everest Bank Limited T.61% 1.290,656.62 | 129,0465,662.36 T.61% 1,142,175.00 114,217,500.33
Himalayan Bank Limited T61% 1290,656.00 | 129,065,600.00 T.61% 1,142,175.00 114.217,499.99
Wirdhan Sanstha T.44% 1,260 437.03 | 126,043, 70340 TA44% 1,115,431.59 111,5435,158.62
Mational Life Insurance Company Ltd. 2.00% 33000000 | 33,900,000.00 2.00r%% 300, 000,00 30,000, 000, 00
Oiher
Meena Pant 5.36% HO7.016.86 | ©0,791,686.25 5.36% 803,903 81 B0,390,380.55
Janardan Dev Pant 0L.64% 107,779.40 10,777,940.03 0.64% 95,380.31 9,538,031 .49
Ganesh Bahadur Thapa . . . 0.72% 108,542.70 10,854,27T0.37
Domestic ownership (Fublic)
A cluss Licensed Institutions
Everest Bank Limited 3.2T% 553821582 | 55,382,582.00 3.61% 541,314.00 54,131,400,00
Mabil Bank Ltd - - - 4.45% 667, 765,50 GG, 776, 550,00
Himalayan Bank Ltd 3.61% 541,314.00 54,131,400.00
Other Institutions
Prabhu Capital Limited 0.50% B5 43283 8,543,283.00 - - -
Mirdhan Sanstha 12.97% 2,197, 741.52 | 219,774,152.32 12.97% 1,944, 905.16 194 490,516.18
Diher
Indira Kc 0.63% 10728616 | 10,728,615.53 0.63% Q043 82 049438171
Top Bahadur Rayamajhy 0.73% 123,180.74 12,318,073.50 0.73% 109,010.12 10,901,011.50
Meena Pant 2.52% 427 89767 | 42,789,766.50 257% 3T8,670.50 37,867,050,00
Keshar Chand Kucheria 0.51% 85, 768,13 8,576,813.02 0.51% 75,902.35 7,590,235 49
International Finence Corporation 7.54% 1278640066 | 127 864,066.15 T.54% 1,131,540.41 113,154,040.84
Grameen Trust 1.56% 26362844 | 26,362,843.50 1.56% 233,299,659 23,319,968, 75
Forcign ewnership (Public) % b : d % -

-
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4.15 Reserves
Following reserves are maintained by the Financial Institution.,

Current Year Previous Year

986,597,751.52 656,569,226.46
Capital reserve 9,574,334.95 18,295,166.48
Exchange equalization reserve T09,566.00 709,566.00
Investment adjustment reserve 1,510,000, 00 1,510,000, 00
Corporate social responsibility reserve 11,888,173.00 2,633.461.22
Client Protection Fund 190,959,551.39 197,331,594.15
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 370,825,890.66 (33,650,308.18)
Aszset revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve 2,970,058.28 {48,689.48)
Dividend equalization reserve - -
Special reserve - -
Other reserve
Institutional Development Fund 152,246.62 152,246.62
Employee Training Fund 28,999.623.00 28,999.623.00
Total 1,604,187,195.42 §72,501,886.29
Statutory General Reserve

General Reserve is maintained as per the regulatory reguirements, This is regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit after tax as general reserve
to build wp the capital wntil the reserve fund balance is twice the paid-up share capital and thereafier minimuom 10% of the net profit after tax. This is the
restricted reserve and cannot be frecly used,

Capilal Reserve

Capital Reserve comprises value of fixed assets received in grant net of accumulated depreciation. Such reserve shall not be available for distribution of
Ividend, Mo amount has been allocated by the Financial Institution during the year,

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Exchange equalization is maintained as per requirement of NRB Diirective, which is 25% of foreign exchange revaluation gain on the translation to the

reporiing currency. This reserve 15 accumulation of such gaing over the years,

Investment Adjostment Reserve
Investment Adjustment Feserve is maintained as per requirement of NREB, the amount equivalent to book value of investment in shares not listed in
Recognized Stock Exchange within 2 years from the date of acquisition except for Investment made in Nepal Finsoft Company Lud.

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve
Corpomte Social Responsibility Feserve is created as per NRB Diirective, which is set aside of 1% of net profit. The balance in the reserve is the amount
which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year fo be utilized for corporate social responsibility objective in the coming years.

CFF Details CSR Details
Particulars Amount Purticulars Amount
1.0pening Balance 197,331,594 1.Opening Balance 2,633,461
Z.Interest Received from FIY 3,873,286 2 Expenses during F.Y 2077/78 2,633,461
3 Expenses during F.Y 207778 68,969,029 3.Allacation in F.Y 207778 11,888,173
4. Allocation in F.Y 2077/78 58,723,699 4.Closing Bul {1-243) 11,888,173

A5 per NRB Directive (1%) 11,888,173

Additional 25% 46,835,526
5.Closing Balance {1+2-3+4) 190,959,551 |
CPF Expenses wilized for Business Rehabilitation subsidy to clients CSR Expenses utilied for Critical illness and Maternity Allowanes
3,69,18,068/-, Critical illness and Covid Safety Subsidy for clients 15,57,000/-, Disaster Relief and other relief to clicats 1,659,000/, School

228,01, 400/-, Scholarship 1o Students 16,38,000/-, Disaster Relisf 1ot 5 00,0001 Foosnrial Literace 312 1627 Covid 19 Hel 93 3995
18,02, 000, Matemity and other expenses 5808, 560/ Fp 2 LU, Fmansial Literney 3181055 FHep ol

Client Protection Fund

Client Protection Fund is created as per NRB Divective, which s et aside of 1% of net profit and 25% of excess annual dividend (Bonos or Cash) progosed
for disgtribution in excess of 20%. The balance in the reserve is the amount which is not exhausted and out of such unexhausted amount, 5 crotes has been
carmarked and deposited as lxed depogit.

Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory Reserve is created due to changes in the NFRS Conversion and adoption with effect in the retrined eamings of the Financial Institation,
Regulatory Beserve includes Deferred Tax Reserve, Actuarial Gain ({losses), Accrued Interest Recelvable, lnterest Acerued on Housing loans and Others
(Balances out of Restaternent of Previous Year Figures). Housing loans provided to staffs tied up with insurance sand bonus amount acemaed to the entity has
been booked in Une with period of loan. Total amount acerued out of housing loan, being not distdbutable, has been maimained in regulatory reserve. The
Diztails of Regulatory Reserve is presented under "Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss as per MRB Regulation™.

Fair Value Reserve

The Fair Valwe Reserve i created against the valuation of the invesiment made ag per the falr valuation of the investment made, quoted as available for sale
investments.

Orther Reserves

Oither Reserves includes reserve created for Employes Training Fund and Instinational Development Fund. Employee Training Fund is created as per the
NREB Directive, the allocation is utilized in the current year and remaining balances is transfemred to be utilized for treining expenses m coming years, Due
to Covid, no expenses incarred during the year. Howewver, as per NRB Circalar, if is not mandatory to expense for current year. Therefore, the Financial
Institution has not transferred any amount to this reserve for current year,

I et e l-r
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Disclosure as per point no.16 of "Procedure To Give Consent To Publish Financial Statements And To Approve Dividends For
The Purpose Of Annual General Meeting Of Licensed Banks And Financial Institutions, 2077"

Table.1

As of Asadh end 2078
No. of Customers Amount (NRS.)

216,446 184,676,531.38

Particulars

Acerued Interest Received after Asadh end 2078 till 15 Bhadra
2078

Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan
Portfolio NA
Extension of meratorium peried of loan provided to Industry or
Project under construction - -
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision - -
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected
borrowers - -
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers - -
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (COVID
Loan) extended for upto 1 year with 5% provisioning - -
Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan)
extended for upto 1 year with 5% provisioning - -
Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for
uplo two years as per clause 41 of NRB Directives 2 - -

62,186,412.88

Table.2

Particulars

No. of Customers

Amount (NRS.)

Refinance Loan

NA

NA

Business Continuity Loan

NA

NA

Table.3

Particulars

During F.Y 2077/78

No. of Customers

Amount (NRS.)

Subsidized Loan

NA

NA

-l Azt @it widEest Q000/6T
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities include Litigation in Large Tax Payers Office, the amount which is not acknowledged as liability by
the Financial Institution.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Contingent liabilities - -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilitics - -

Capital commitment & -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation 4,998 540.00 7,300,532.00

Others - -
Total 4,998,540.00 7.300,532.00

4.26.1 Capital commitments
The Financial Institution does not have any Capital Commitments,

Particulars Currenl Year Previous Year

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution
but provision has not been made in financial statements,

Capital commitmenits in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for i &
Approved but not contracted for o -
Sub Total . -

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total - -
Total - -

4.26.2 Lease commitments

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease,
where the institution is lessee

Mot later than 1 vear - -
Later than 1 vear but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 vears - -
Sub Total - -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease,
where the institution is lessee

Mot later than 1 vear - -
Later than 1 vear but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 vears - -
Sub Total
Grand Total

4.26.3 Litigation
The Financial Institution has currently Contingent Liability of Rs, 49,98,540 related to Income Tax in Large Tax Payers
Office,

Y3 - e A Hiadee 2006/6T .
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4.27 Interest Income

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Interest Income includes interest income on loans and advances to customers and staffz, investment securities except on those
investment securities measured at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, placement with banks and

financial ingtitutions and interest income on gratuity fund.

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from MNepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

342,736.00
54.402,104.45

3,607,866,054.29

28,654,618.57

3,238,038,804.12

Investment securities 11,840,000.06 56,826,810.49
Loans and advances to staff 29.855,0952.19 4,639.915.31
Oiher 39.453,274.18 -
Taotal interest income 3.743.760,121.17 | 3.328.160.148.49

4.28 Interest Expense

Interest Expenses include interest on deposits collected and interest on borrowings.

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars
Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

1.071,985,626.82

967,871,122.99

Deposits from customers

Borrowing 294.704.516.04 T01,012.340.45
Debt securities issued - -
Subardinated liabilities - -
Other = -
Total interest expense 1.366.690,142.86 1,668,883, 463.44

4.29 Fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission incomes is generally recognized when the services has been provided. Service fees on loans is
recopnized as fees and commission income by the Financial Institution and the same is recognized upfront and is not deferred

with the tenure of loan.

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Loan administration fees
Service fees

Commitment Fees

Card Issuance Fees
Prepayment and swap fees
Eemittance fees
Brokerage Fees

453,876,272.01

33.055,128.82

5,717,609.75

359201 338.89

1,484, 166.56

28.934.457.61

Other fees and commission income
Total Fees and Commission Income 492.649,010.58 389.620,003.06

4.30 Fees and Commission Expense

Fees and Commission Expenses include remittance fees and commission.

Particulars

Currenl Year

Previous Year

Brokerage

ATM management fees
Visa Master card Fees
Guarantee Commission Fees
DDVTT/Swift Fees

9,026,328.23

,117,305.29

Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commizsion expense - -
[ Total Fees and Commission Expense 9.026,328.23 9,117.305.29 |

4.31 Net Trading Income

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction
Other

Met trading income

- Azwit et wioaee 2006/6T
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4.32 Other Operating Income

Other Operating Income include loss on sale of Property and Equipment.

Particulars

Foreign exchange revaluation gain
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment propertics
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/(loss) on sale of property and equipment
Gain/{loss) on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other- Grant Income

Current Year

{142,033.80)

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Previous Year

384,299.11
1,336,716.33

1,283,137.00

Total

{142,033&1];

3,004,152.44

4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan
loss provision prescribed by NRB Directive. Higher of loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered for
impairment. Accrued Interest Receivable on loans and Loans provided to employees have been considered under Loans and
Advances measured at Amortized Cost. Impairment as per NRB Directive is 163,673,100 and Impairment as per NFRS is
125,513,270 (Collective Impairment is 124,743,387 and Individual Impairment is 769,883).

Particulars

Current Y car

Previous Year

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls
Impairment charge/{reversal) on loan and advances to customer
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial
institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

163,673,100.20

544,676,471.32

Total

163,673,100.20

544,676.471.32

4.34 Personnel Expense

Expenses related to employees of the Financial Institution are included under this head. Gratuity expense of previous year
restated to match with expense of actuary report. Market Interest Rate on staff loans is approximately equal to interest charged
on such loans, therefore, Finance expense under NFRS of previous year has been restated.

Particulars

Salary

Allowances

Gratuity expense

Provident fund

Uniform

Training & development expense
Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Employees incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRSs
Other expenses related to staff

Current Year
389,631,464.32
200,419,686.00

51,339,120.00
29.363,819.50
6,840,730.00
2,861,316.33
61,906,131.00

20,605,753.47

Previous Year
379,818,60].82
198,071,173.00

50,974,573.00

28,660,272.00

6,791,625.00
12,976,925.24
42,400,218.00

20,329.475.78

Sub Total 762,968,040.62 740,022,863.84
Employees bonus 179,421,662.15 42,910,932.46
Grand total 942,389,702.77 782,933,796.30

=it afts Hfaaee 2006/6T .
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Operating Expense other than those relating to personnel expenses are recognized and presented in this head.

Previous Year

Particulars

Current Year

Directors' fes 547 00000 265,017.00
Directors' expense 205,991.50 -
Auditors' remuneration S00,000.00 S00,000.00
Other audit related expense - -
Professional and legal expense 1,349 28533 227.750.00
Office administration expense TR,380,440.55 T7,313,233.21]
Operating lease expense 39,483,529.50 37,136,541.08
Operating expense of investment propertics - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 2,563,162.00 17,744,454.00
Client Protection expenses - -
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other E 5
Total 123,029,408.88 133,186,995.29

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Water and electricity 4,130,037 96 3,946, 890 82
Repair and maintenance
(a) Building - 46,373.00
(b) Vehicle 363,626.49 1,096,556.08
(c) Computer and accessories 355,718.40 502,811.00
(d) Office equipment and fumiture - -
() Other 1,143,950.58 687,063.57
Insurance 4.416,888.93 4,765,849.01
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 11,143,636.37 11,887,136.72
Printing and stationery 8, 787,250.35 9,797,208.05
Newspaper, books and journals 432.122.00 528.428.00
Advertisement 175,876.35 252 584 .00
Donation - 24
Security expense 596,640.00 596,640,00
Deposit and loan guarantee premium - -
Travel allowance and expense 14,117.453.98 14,011,992.21
Entertainment 4.456,512.50 4,562,444.32
Annualfspecial general meeting expense 45,445.00 T63,276.00
Other 2B215.281.64 23,867,980.43
Total T8,380,440.55 77,313,233.21

4.36 Depreciation & Amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation includes
depreciation on property and equipment. Depreciation of previous vear restated and calculated as per accounting poli

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Depreciation on property and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets

16,374,838.24

25,456,041.98

Total

16,374,838.24

25,456,041.98

4.37 Non-Operating Income

Incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.

Previous Year

Particulars

Current Year

Recovery of loan written off 580,076.53 1,219,857.47
Other income - -
Total 580,076.53 1,219,857.47
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4.38 Non-Operating Expense

Expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head,

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan written off 268,604 .00 342.921.00
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense - -
Total B68.694.00 342.921.00

4.39 Income Tax Expense

The Financial Institution has calculated current tax on the basis of self-assessment as per Income Tax Act, 2058,

Particulars

Current tax expense
Current year

Adjustments for prior yvears

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary difTerences
Changes in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses

Current Yecar
556,845,705.21
529,299 812,21

27,545 893.00

(130,868,046.18)
(130,868,046.18)

Previous Year
129.438,358.92
129,438,358.92

12,301,379.87
12,301,379.87

Total income tax expense

425,977,659.03

141,739,738.79

4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit before tax
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 %

1,614,794,959.31
484,438 487.79

557.407,166.84
167,222,150.05

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 44,861,324.41 13,578,841.16
Less; Tax effect on exempt income - 115,289.73
Less; Tax on Temporary Difference 130,868,046.18 29,923 970,09
Add: Tax effect on other items 27,545 893.00 9.021,992 60
Total income tax expense 425,977.659.03 141,739,738.79
Effective Tax Rate 30%: %

& vl

=it afts Hfaaee 2006/6T .




i}e , Ferdier 3cener ergfda fAdi=r sicen fGifldes
ol

i dl.l l.ltti.l I..lgllhlth !I“I,‘I Sin:til Llrllt-d

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position of Previous Year (2076/77)
(Due to Restatement of Opening Figures)

Total Asscis

Due to Bank and Financial
Institutions

0Z.68]1.22

43,999 33872

Difference Remarks
Cash and Cash cquivalent | 174,733,219.47 233TITLS2142 | 2,062438,30195 | pocinssification of Money af call and Short
Stamtory Balances and i . i
Reclassification of Interest Receivable on
g;:kﬁ'om Mepal Rastra 293,105,707 .53 294,146,255, 53 1042, 548,00 Gorecnmant Bonds,
Placement with Bank & Reclassification of Money al call and Shost
Financial Institutions 2,162,438,302.42 00,300, 00000 (1,762,438, 302.42) HMotice and Placement with domestic FT's.
Derivative Financial - - .
Instrumenis
Other Trading Assels -
Loans and Advances to
MFIs & Cooperatives - - -
Lioana sl At vancan i 19,651,206,045.32 19,887, 769,465.56 236,563,42024 | Deferred Employee Benefit (Staff Loans)
Customers Reversed,
Reclassification of Interest Receivable on
Investment Securities 601,438,631.59 2061, 396, 08400 (401,042,547 .59) Government Bonds and Placement with domestic
FT's,
Current Tax Assets 39,675,265.78 39,675,265, 78 -
Investment Property - - -
Property and Equipment 154,908,704 .93 186,138,657.95 31,229.953.02 Change in Book Value of FPE due to NFRS.
Goodwill and Intangible ~ _ _
asseis
Deferred Tax Assets 51, 203,017.19 63,972 402,26 12,769 3R5.08 Deferred Tax Assets Revised,
Other Asscts 442,495,787.00 205,932,36744 | (236363,419.55) | Debarec Buploys Bensfit (Other Asset)

Dae to Nepal Restra Bank

Dierivative Financial
Ingtrument

Deposits from Custemers

13,341 628 B04.91

13,341 628 804.91

Bormowing

6,045 132 B57 80

6,045 133 H57 80

Current Tax Liabilities

Provisions

149 632 .40

Deferred Tax Liabilities

149.632.40

Other Liabilities

376,551,329.61

3T9.473270.53

2,921,940.92

Orperating Lease Payable reversed and Leave
Provision adjusted as per actuary report.

Dbt Securitics Issued

Subordinated Liabilities
Total Liabilities

.81

20,663 462 62

20,666,384,565.73

2,921 540,92

Share Capital 1, 500, e D00 (WD 1,500, 00, (00 0 -

|_Share Premium 510,111.00 510,111.00 -

| Retained Eamings 607 809, 872.73 575 805,456.92 {32,004.415.81) | Due to Restatement

Reserves TR 420,072.67 ¥72,501 886.29 T3,081, 813,62 | Due to changes in Regulatory Reserve and Capital

Reserve

As per our report of even date

Sharad Nidhi Tireari Santosh Kumar Bhattarai
(Chairman) (Ihrector)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Bahedor Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwnri
(Ihirecton) (Direcior) (Direcior)
Amnila Shrestha, FCA
Puskar Raj Subedi Mulkesh Diahal Janardan Dev Pant Partner, Sundar & Co.
Manager) (Chief Manager) {Chief Executive Officer) Chartered Accoustants
Date : 25 Mow, 2021
Place : Kathmandu, Mepal

- Azwit et wioaee 2006/6T

N




o
. =,

kmmmmmm/

2?* Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss of Previous Year (2076/77)

Particulars

MNEFHRS 207

NFRS Restaied

DilTerence

3,332,137,396.31

Interest Income 3328,160. 14849 | {3,977 247.82) Interest income on staff loans reversed doe to NFRE.
Interest Expense 1,668,883 463,44 | 166888346344 | -

MNet Interest Income 1,663,253, 93287 | 1,659.276.685.05 | (3,977,247.81)
Fee and Commission

Pt 3R9,620,003.06 JR9.620,003.06 -

Fee and Commission

Expenae 9,117,305,29 9,117,305.2% -

Net Fee and

Ciinnibalae Torais 3IR0,502,697.77 AR0,502,697.77 -

Net Interest, Fee and

Commission Income 2,043,756,630.64 | 203977938282 | (3,977.247.82)
Met Truding Incomse - -

Cither Chperating

Ry 3,004,152.44 3,004,152 44 -
i 2,046,760,783,08 | 2,042,753,535.26 | (3,977,247.52)
Impairment

charge/{reversal) for 544.6T6,471.52 544.676,471.32 R

loans and other losses

Net Operating Income | 1,502,084,311.76 | 1,498,107,063.94 | (3,977.247.82)
Operating Expense

Personnel Expenses

TI18.970,667.10

T82,933,796.30

62,963,129.1%

Deferred Employee Benefit Bxpenses reversed and Gratuity
anmd Leave expenses increased in line with actuary report.

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:

463,398,564.19

415,667,418.05

gxﬂ;ﬁ‘:m“"g 139,626,850.98 | 133,186,995.29 | (6,439,855.69) | Operating Lease Expenses as per NFRS reversed.
Drepreciation &
s 25,456,041.98 2545604198 | -
Operating Profit 617,030,751.69 556,530,230.37 (60,500,521.32)
Mon-Operating Income | 1,219,857.47 1,219,857.47 g
MNon-Operating
Expenge 342,921.00 342.921.00 -
’Eﬂ:m before Income | 0 007 su%.16 S57,407,166.84 | (60,500,521.32)
Income Tax Expense 154, 509,123.87 141,739, 738.79 (12,769, 385.08)
Cusrrent Tax. 129,43K,358,92 | 125,438,358.92 | -
Dreferred Tax 25,070,764.94 12,301,579.87 12,769 385.08 Change in Deferred Tax.

(47,731,136.25)

Eguity holders of the
Financial Institution

463,398,564.29

415,667 428.05

(47,731,136.25)

Profit for the year

463,398,564.19

415,667, 428.05

(47,731,136.25)

As per our report of even date
Sharad Nidhi Tiwari Santosh Kumar Bhattarai
{Chairman) {Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
{Directar) {Director) (Director)
 Anila Shrestha, FCA
Puskar Raj Subedi Mukesh Dahal Janardan Dev Pant Partner, Sundar & Co,
{Manager) {Chief Manager) {Chief Executive Officer) Chartered Accountants
Date: 25 Nov, 2021
Place:  Kathmandu, Nepal
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Reconciliation of Adjustment in Retained Earnings

Particulars il Blemarks

Fixed Assels 18.926.,737.54 Fixed assels adjusted as per NFRS during the current year.
Lease Expenzes 16,610,459.39 Lease Expenses as per NFRS reversed,

Leave Encashment (7,041,091.43) Leave Provision adjusted as per Actuary Report,

Deferred Tax Expenses (12,769 385.07) Changres in Defierred Tax due to restatement.

Taotal Adjustment in Retained Earnings 15,726,720.43

Particulars 2077-T8 Blemarks

MFRE.S Housing Loan 32.090,319.21 Accrued Interest on Staff Housing Loan booked as per NFRS,
Gratuity (47,423,742 .94) Gratuity Expense reversed as per Actuary Report.

Leave Encashment 24.063,125.56 Leave Expense adjusted as per Actuary Report.

Excess in Opening General Reserve as per NFRS adjusted in line with

General Reserve 1,405 987,63 profit of GAAP.,
I st A 1 of Previous Years (309,973,783.00) Accrued I.l:_derest Rnu:e_wnble bocked _m previpus years reversed and
booked as income during the current year,
NFRS Adjustment 49.686.396.16 Balances out of Restatemnent of Previous Year Figures
Total Adjustment in Retained Earnings (200,151,697.37)
As per our repot of even date
Sharad Midhi Tiwari Santosh Kumar Bhattarai
(Chailrman) (Direcior)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Behadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
(Director) (Director) (Director)
Anila Shrestha, FCA
Puskar Ruj Subedi Mukesh Dahal Junardan Dev Pant Partner, Sundar & Ca,
(Manager) {(Chief Manager) (Chief Executive Qfficer) Chartered Accountants
Date ; 25 Mov, 2021

Place : Kathmandu, Nepal
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghuhltta Blﬂl}’ﬂ Sanstha leltB{l

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Asar 2078

Particulars

Current Year

Wet profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:

a. General rescrve

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

¢. Capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate social responsibility fund

¢. Employees' training fund

f. Client Protection Fund

g. Other

1,188,817,300.28

331,434,512.69

11,888,173.00

58,723,699.32

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

786,770,915.27

Regulatory adjustment:
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment {-)reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non-Banking Assets (-)reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)

f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)reversal (+)

h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)reversal (+)

128,839,144.14

113,397,143.76

37,795,380.70

i. Other (+/-) -
Housing Loan Bonus accrued but not received T4,758,134.08
Other (Balances out of Restatement of Previous Year Figures) 49 686,396.16
Regulatory Reserve for the vear 404.476,198.84
Remained Retained Earning for Previous vear 169,815.401.54
Distributable profit or (loss) 552,110,117.97

5, Dvisclosures & Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management & Risk Management Framework
Risk is inherent in the Financial Institution’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the
Financial Institution’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Financial Institution is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank is mainly exposed to;

1. Liguidity Risk

2. Interest Rate Risk

3. Credit Risk

4. Operational Risk
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Financial Institution’s risk
management framework. Risk Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the Financial Institution which
includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economic level business risks
that could interfere with Financial Institution’s objective and goals and whether the Financial Institution’s is in substantial
compliance with its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, regulatory
or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk Committee ensures integration of all major risk in capital
assessment process, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Financial Institution, through its training and management standards and procedures,
continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees are assigned
and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.

Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Financial Institution will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the Financial Institution may be unable to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Financial Institution has formulated
separate liquidity risk management policy and developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing
liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade collateral which
could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Financial Institution maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liguidated in the
event of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow, The Financial Institution also has committed lines of credit that
could be utilized to meet liguidity needs. Further, the Financial Institution maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal Rastra
Bank equal to approx. 3.19% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the Financial Institution’s policy, the liquidity
position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the
market in general and specific to the Financial Institution. The most important of these is to maintain the required ratio of
liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement . Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term bank deposits and
liquid debt securities available for immediate sale.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our exposure to
interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Financial Institution focuses on risk
management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in
regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The interest rate risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market
rate risk set by ALCO.

Sensitivity Analysis
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Name of Changes in Financial effect on Financial effect on
Variables Variables Profit before Profit before

Tax Equity Tax Equity
Increase in Yariable Cost of Funds (+) 1% (22.{]3.53,420} = (20.33-.5?.61?} E
Drecrease in Variable Cost of Funds (-3 1% 220850420 - 20,28 67,617 -
Increasc in Variable Interest Rate +) 1% E?’P‘i‘:wmu' . EpﬁwM“' =
Deecrease in Variable Interest Rate (-3 1% (24.07,75,629) - (20,15,08,177) -
Increase in Variable MNAV of Fund (+) Rs.l - 6,95, 564 - 6,95,564
Decrease in Variable NAV of Fund (-} Rs.l z (6,95,5641 | - (6,95,5641

-l Azt @it widEest Q000/6T

Credit Risk

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from Financial
Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which has been used by Institution,
includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers” background, business and experience,
financial statement of bormower, credibility, scctor wise analysis cte.

Operational Risk

"Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error, fraud or external
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications,
or lead to financial loss, Strategic and Reputational Risks are not covered in Operational Risk.

Effective operational risk management systems aims to minimizing losses and customer dissatisfaction due to failure in
processes, focusing on flows in products and their design that can expose the Financial Institution to losses due to fraund,
analyzing the impact of failures in technology / system, developing plans to meet external shocks that can adversely impact
continuity in the Financial Institution’s operations. The Financial Institution has introduced a "comprehensive operational
risk monitoring and reporting framework” as well as "output checking” at all branches covering all transactions on daily
basis to minimize operational risk."”

One of the growing risks among others these days is Operations Risk that arises out of inefficient processes and people inside
and outside the Financial Institution, Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is the management committes where
operating risk, market risk and other risks are discussed, in line with ALM Policy. Information and Technology Division in
the Financial Institution reviews and checks the security aspects in line with IT Policy of the Financial Institution. Financial
Institution has conducted an [5 Audit of the Financial Institution’s system and suggestions given by the audit with respect to
safety and security standards are being put in place.

" Financial Institution has separate division to oversee operation risk including Compliance of KYC and AML. The division

-1



i).,,j Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya 5anstha Limited
is headed by senior level staff with adequate access to the daily report, operational processes and right to recommend the
changes in the system and procedures. All the activities are undertaken in line with the set criteria in the Standing Instruction
Manual, policies and guidelines including Directives and circulars from central bank (the regulatory authority). Similarly
daily functions at operations are independently reported through separate reporting line other than business generation and
credit risk where independence of checking and control is complied with.

Fair Value of Financial Assets & Liabilities

Financial Instruments are recorded at fair value. The following is a description of how fair values are determined for financial
instruments that are recorded at fair value using valuation technigques. These incorporate the Financial Institution’s estimate
of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments.

For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by referring to externally quoted prices or observable pricing
inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is obtained. In an inactive market, direct observation of a
traded price may not be possible. In these circumstances, the Financial Institution uses alternative market information to
validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more relevant
and reliable. Financials assets measured at fair value (either through PL or OCI), primarily consisting of quoted equities and
Quoted Mutual Fund units, are valued using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date. If unquoted,
those are carried at cost.

Financial investments - Measured through OCI
Financials assets measured through OCI, primarily consist of quoted equities and Quoted Mutual Fund units ,are valued
using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date. For unquoted securities those are carried at cost.

5.2 Capital Management

Financial Institution shall disclose following information in regard of Capital Management:
i) Qualitative Disclosures
Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Financial Institution to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to
manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as
strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process
of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The Financial
Institution has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance.
ii) Quantitative Disclosures

1. Capital Structure and Capital adequacy

»  Tier 1 capital and breakdown of its components

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Paid-up Equity Share Capital

1,695,000,000

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Share Premium

510,111

Irredeemable Prelerence Share

Statutory General Reserve

986,597,752

Retained Earnings

552,110,118

Capital Redemption Reserve -
Capital Adjustment Fund -
Calls in Advance -
Other Free Reserves -
Deductions 185,774,546
a. Goodwill -
b. Deferred Tax Assets 177,369,546
¢. Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits -

d. Investment to the company having financial interest -

e. Fictitious assets -

f. Investment on land and building for self-use not complying the Directives of NRB 8,405,000

g. Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits -

h. Underwriting shares not sold within stipulated time -

i. Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws -
Total Tier 1 Capital 3,048,443,434
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. Tier 2 capital and breakdown of its components

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Provigions of loan loss made for pass loan 335,294,824
Additional loan loss provision -

Hvbrid capital instruments -

Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt -

Exchange Equalization Fund 709,566

Asset revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added automatically) -

Investment adjustment Fund 1,510,000
Total Tier 2 Capital 337,514,390

+ Detailed Information about Subordinated Term Debts

The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated term debts.

s Total gualifying capital

Total Tier 1 Capital 3,048,443 434
Tolal Tier 2 Capital 337,514,390
Total Qualifving Capital 3,385,957,824
= Capital Adequacy Ratio

Core Capital Ratio 11.36%
Capital Adeguacy Ratio 12.62%
- Risk Weighted Exposures

Particulars Weight (%) Amount (Rs.) RWA
A. On-Balance Sheet Items

Cash Balance 0 43,606,404 -
NRB Balance 0 354,806,788 -
Investment to Govt. Bond 1] 190,000,000 -
Acecrued interests on Govt, bond 0 1,042,548 -
Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions 20 117,105,316 23,421,063
Money al call 20 545,768,195 109,153,639
Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 14,639,054 14,639,054
Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100 24,804,232,109 24,804,232,109
Fixed assets 100 149969918 149969918
Other assels (Excepl advance lax payment) 100 1,169,360,955 1,169,360,955
Total of On-Balance Sheet Items (A) 27.390,531,286 26,270,776,738
B. Ofi-Balance Sheet Items

Off-Balance-sheet [tems 100 4,998,540 4,998,540
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 100 547,810,626 547,810,626
Total of Off-Balance Sheet Items (B) 552,809,166 552,809,166
Total Risk Weighted Exposure (A+B) 27.943,340,451 26,823,585,904

iii} Compliance with external requirement

"The Finanecial Institution has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which il is subject and

there are no such consequence where the institution has not complied with those requirement.”
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The summary of
significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized. The following table analyses the camrying amounts of the
financial instruments by category as defined in NAS 39,

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Particulars

Amortized Cost

Measured at

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions

Derivative Financial Instruments

Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives

Loans and Advances to Customers

Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through PL
Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through OCI
Financial Investments - Measured at Amortized Cost

Other Financial Asgels

736,475,913.87
355,840,335.58
B70,000,000.00

23,737,179,086.25

190,000,000,00

FVTOCI

14,639,054.00

736,479,913 87
355,849,335.58
970,000,000.00

23,737,179,086.25

14,639,054.00
190,000,000.00

Total Financial Assets

25,989,508,335.6

14,639,054.00

26,004,147,389.6

Financial Liabilities

Due From Customers
Other Financial Liabilitics
Other Liabilities

15,819,201,068,72
6,330,533,330.24

15,819,201,068.72
6,330,333,330.24

Taotal Financial Liabilities

22,149,734,398.96

22,149,734,398.96

5.4 Operating Segment Information

1. General Information

(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments

The Financial Institution’s operation is provincially decentralized and duly managed. However strategic and financial policies
are monitored and directed from the Head Office. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the
accounting policies of the Company, NFES 8 ‘Segment Reporting”™ and Unified Directives to Microfinance, 2077 as issued
by NRB.

i) Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment based on relationship to operating activities of the segment.
Revenue and Expenses which relates to the Institution as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis
have been disclosed as “Unallocable™.

ii) Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax-related
assets, and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as
“Unallocable™.

iif) Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative threshold as defined in NFRS 8 have been aggregated under the
Other Segments, Operating segments not meeting the guantitative threshold and still considered reportable by the
management have been disclosed separately. Aggregation is consistent with the core principle of NFRS.

(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues
Each segment provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance services to low-
income families of Nepal. The above mentioned are the main source of revenue for each operating segment.
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2. Information about profit or loss, assets, and liabilities

Particulars Province 1 Province 2 Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Unallocated Total

Reveoues from external customers IR0, 643,807 1,782,724,172 41T.R23 245 164,695,223 | LI13A70,774 247,239 032 1,358, 776236 5465, 386,491

Infersegment revenues

Nt Revenue X80, 648, 80T 1,782, 724,172 AITEEN 245 164,655,228 | LI0EATRTT 247,235 %2 1,558, TH6. X6 468,386,491
Interost Revenue X578, 545 1,203, 750,060 361,304, 6400 134365957 | 857529941 218000005 | 630,905 45T 1743, 760,021
Interest Expense 104,545 067 05,398,212 L1450, 107 61, 778558 3I5.711,500 6, L5105 100, 5096, 605 1366, 650, 143
Met Interest Revenue 251,299 848 B0, 551 &35 2, 793,552 72,387 3T IILELE 440 L33 Bas0kd | 240,508 5559 LETT, 069 5TE
Depreciation and Amostization 1,465,243 1Ba7 ale 1,734,512 103,519 3,650,776 1, 180,06 3414, 7T 16,374,838

Segment Profit / (Loss) B5,614, 710 341,965,727 113,678,928 47,304 357 330,116,512 41 ATEAT0 218,056, T 1,188,817 300

(ither material non-cash items:

Laoan Loss Provisions Expenses 10,848 578 93,540,543 3,746,711 (4,922,021) L0360, 6049 20,256 38T {11E,102,320) 16,574,038

Croodwill Amort]zaidon

Ohers Intangible Assets Amortization

Impakrmsent af Azsets

Sepmetl Adpets 1,573,450,193 4,471,662 559 1,723,192, 109 12,0455 630 4,880,137,273 048, 4455 937 12,111,537.374 26,540,523,07T5

Sepmend Liabilities 1477845483 | 4,079,692.833 1508,513,180 | BA4SEXITE | 4.520020,960 6,590,467 | 9,230,490458 IL6RR, 715,650

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.
Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the respective
segment. Equity and Tax Expense are not allocated to the individual segments. For segmentation purpose, all
business transactions of offices and business units located in a particular provinee are grouped together,

(b) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ profits or losses and the
entity’s profit or loss before income tax.
None

(c¢) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments” assets and the entity’s asset.
None

(d)y Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment
profit or loss and the effect, if any, and
None

(e) MNature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.
None

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
a) Revenue

Total revenues from reportable segment 4,106,610,253
Other Revenues 1,358.776,238
Elimination of intersegment revenues -

Entity's Revenue 5,465,386,491

b) Profit or Loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 970,760,504
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts 218,056,796
Profit before income tax 1,188.817.300
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p-

) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 14,428.985,701
Other Assels -
Unallocated amounts 12,111,537,374
Entity's assets 26,540,523.075
d) Liabilities
Total Liabilities for reportable segments 13,458.225,197
Other Liabilities -
Unallocated Liabilities 9,230,490,454
Entity's liabilities 22,688,715,650
5. Information about product and services
Revenue from each type of product and services
{2) Microfinance Related Services 5.465,386,491
(b) Others N
Total 5.465.386,491
6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas
{(A)Domestic
{a) Province 1 380,648,807
(b} Province 2 1,782,724,172
(c) Bagmati Province 417 823 245
(d) Gandaki Province 164,695,223
{e) Lumbini Province 1,113,479,774
(f) Kamali Province 247,239,032
| () Sudur Paschim Province 324,412,283
(h) Others 1,034,363,954
(B)Foreign I
Total 5.465,386,491

7. Information about major customers

5.5 Share options and share based payment
Mot Applicable.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment
The Standard defines a contingent liability as:
A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occumrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity: or

A present obligation that arises from events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sullicient reliability. An entity should not recognize a contingent
liability. An entity should disclose a contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits is remote.

Disclosure related to major customers is nol applicable as no revenue from a single external customer amount to 10
percent or more of the entity’s revenue.
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Details of contingent liability are as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Contingent liabilities - -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - -
Capital commitment - -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation 4,998, 540,00 7.300,532.00
Others - -
Total 4,998,540.00 7.300,532.00

5.7 Related Party Disclosures

In the ordinary course of its business operation the Institution has conducted commercial transactions with parties who are
defined as related parties in NAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™. All those transactions were conducted on an arm’s length
price basis.

5.7.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities
The chairperson and other members of the Board are paid NPR 5000 and NPR 4500 respectively per meeting,

The Board of Directors (BOD) has been paid total meeting lees of NPR 3,889,500 during the reportable financial year, The
BOD had held total of fourteen Board Meetings during the period.

The meeting fees paid to different Board Level Committees are as follows:

Board Level Committees MNo. of Meetings Meeting Allowances
(NPR)

Audit Committee [3] 54,000

Risk Management Committee 7 58,500

Human Resource Committee 5 22,500

AML Committee 4 18,000

Other Committee (Building Construction) 1 4500

Taotal 1,57,500

While conducting Board Meetings, the following Board Meeting Expenses has been incurred:

§. No | Particulars Amount (NPR)
1 Communication Expenses 109,500
2 Bus & Air Fare Expenses 43,414
3 Tiffin & Miscellaneous Expenses 33,078
Total 2,05,992

5.7.2 Loans and Advances extended to Promoters
There are no such benefits extended to Promoters.
5.7.3 Disclosure of a classified list of all related parties

Followings have been identified as related parties for “Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited”, under NAS 24
“Related Party Disclosures™:

KMP Position

Mr. Janardan Dev Pant Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Raj Naravan Das Assistanl General Manager
Mr. Ram Bahadur Chaudhary Company Secretary

Where the Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of
that entity, KMP includes Managing Director, Whole time Directors, Chief Finance Officer and Company Secretary, While
identifying related party relationship attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.
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5.7.4 Compensation details for Key Management Personnel (KMF)
Key Management Personnel includes members of the Executive Committee of the Institution,

Particulars Amount

Short-term employee benefits 77,826,444

Post-employment benefits 1,03,61,503

Other long-term benefits 13,18,820

Termination benefits -

Share-bazed payment -

Total 1.94,66.767

The salary and benefits paid to Key Management Personnel other than directors are as follows:
Name Paosition Basic Provident Allowance Bonus & Other Taotal
Salary Fund welfare Perquisites Income

Mr. Janardan Diev Pant CEQ 2 088,000 | 208200 1,692 000 300,059 231,205 4,520,064
Mr. Raj Narwyan Dias AGM 992 712 93,271 TAT B0 125,155 145,345 2,106,337
Mr. Ram Bahadur Chaudhary | Company Secretary 835368 83,537 646479 105,589 74,411 1,745 384 |

Key Management Personnel are also provided with the following benefits;
i Benefits as per the Employee Terms of Service By-Laws,
ii. Bonus to the staff as per The Bonus Act,
iii. Vehicle Fuel Expenses as per Institution's Staff Vehicle Scheme.

Existing members of Executive Committee include;

Name Positions Held As/In

Mr. Janardan Dev Pant Chief Executive Officer; HR Committee; AML Commiltee
Mr, Raj Narayan Das Asgistant General Manager; HR Committee
Mr. Ram Bahadur Chaudhary Company Secretary

Mr. Santosh Kumar Bhattarai Audit Committee; Risk Committce

Mr. Top Bahadur Ravamajhi AML Committee

Mr. Lekhnath Neupane Audit Committee

Mr, Naravan Prasad Neupane Risk Committee

Mr, Narayvan Bahadur Karki HRE Committes

Mr. Devendra Bahadur Raut HE Committes

Mr. Mukesh Dahal AML Committee

5.7.5 Transactions with Subsidiary and Associates Companies

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control
over those policies, As per NAS 28 “Investments in Associates & Joint YVentures”, while computing significant influence
potential voting power is taken into account. Existence of significant influence is evidenced by the existence of one or more
of the following;:
i.  Representation in the Board of Directors;

ii. Participation in the policy making process including dividend distribution and other appropriation of profit;

iii.  Material transaction between the investor and the investee;

iv. Interchange of managerial personnel; and

v.  Provision for essential managerial transaction.

By virtue of representation in the Board of Directors of Nepal Finsoft Company Limited, the Institution has significant
influence in the Board of Directors of the said entity. But no any financial transactions has been executed during the year,

Additional Disclosures:

Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties
2077-78 2076-77

Interest Income - =

Interest Expenses 112,508,772.06 236,849,842.76

Other Income - -

Other Expenses - -

Dividend Income(net) - 384.299.00
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Statement of Financial Position

Transaction with Related Parties

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Total Assets 2,612,225 000.00 2.070,397,348.59
Loans and Advances 2,612.225,000.00 2,070,397, 348.59
Other Receivables - -

Total Liabilities - -
Customer Deposits - -
Other Payables - 1,153,753.42
Commitments and Contingencies

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties
2077-T8 2076-T7
Undrawn Credit Limits - -
Other Contingencies - -
Total - -

5.8 Merger and acquisition
The Financial Institution has not entered into any merger and acquisition activities in the reporting period and in the
comparative previous period.

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities
The Financial Institution does not have any non-consolidated entities to report for the reporting period and in the comparative
previous period.

5.10Events after reporting date

Ewvents after the reporting date are those events, favourable or unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date and
the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to the reporting date till the signing of this Financial Statement.

Proposed Dividend: The 281" meeting of the board of directors of the Financial Institution held on Nov 25, 2021 has
recommended distribution of 31.0526% out of which 1.5526% cash dividend (for tax purpose only) and 29.5000% stock
dividend (bonus share) for the annmal period ending 31 Asar, 2078 to be put up for approval at the upcoming shareholder's
annual general meeting of the Financial Institution. The equivalent amount thus recommended for distribution would be
526,342,105.26 that includes 26,317,105.26 cash pay-out (for tax purpose only) and 500,025,000 in bonus shares.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements

As on 31 Asar 2078

Statement of Financial Position As per Unandited As per Audited Varianco Reasoms for Variance
Adsets Financial Statement  Financial State me In Amount In %
Cash and Cash equivalent T3,479,913.87 T36,479.913.87
Statitory Babinces and Dhae fom Nepal Rastra Bank 355,849,135 58 355,849,335 54
Placement with Bank & Fiancial Instibations ST0,000, 000,00 70, D00, 000, O
Deervative Francal Instnaments -
Oither Trading Assets
Loare ard Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 23,737,179,086.25 23,737,179,086,25
Inwvestrnent Securities 204,639,054.00 204,639,054.00
Crrent Tax Assets - -
Investment Property . .
Froperty and Bguipment 149,969, 918.49 149,969 918 49
Goodwill and Intanghble assets - - -
Delerred Tax Assets 161,171,525.72 177,369, 546,02 16,198,020,30 10,05% Audit Adjustrment
Oither Assets 200,086, 220,65 209,036,220.65 -
Assets 26,524, 325,084.56 | 26,540,523,074.86 16,198,020.30
Drue o Bank and Financial Institutions . . .
D to Mepal Rastra Bank - -
Derivative Fioancid Instnament - -
Deposis fom Custormers 15,819,201,068.72 15,819,201 068,72
Bomowing 6,330,533,330.24 6,330,533.330.24 -
Curent Tax Lanbilities 2,134 B5H.30 61,719.951.62 39,585,003,32 2791.06% Audi Adpstrment
Frovisioms 76,511.00 T6,511.00 -
Deferred Tax Liabikties - -
Oither Lanbibties 477,184, THE B9 477,184,788 k0
Dbt Securitics Tzsued - -
Subordiated Labiktes - - -
Liabilities 629,130,557.14 12,688, 715,65 585,003.31
Equity
Share Capital 1,655,000, 004000 165, R, 10D, D
Share Premmiem 510,111.00 S10,111.00 -
Retained Bamings 930,601,048.16 55L,110,117.57 (1E7.490,930.19) -41.24% Audit Adjustment
Reserves 1,264,083, 338,26 1,604, 187,195.42 344,103,857.17 27.31% Audit Adjustrent
al Equity 3,895,194,407.42 3,851,807 42440 43,387,073.02)
Liabilitics and Equity 16,524, 315,054.56 26,540,513,074.86 16,198,020.30
Interest Income 3,743,760,121,17 3,743, 760,121.17 .
Intereat Expense 1,366,690,142 86 1,366,600,142 86
Net Interest Income 2,377,065,578.31 2377,069.978.31
Few amd Commission Income 492,649, 01058 492 A49.010.58
Fee and Commiszion Expense 9,026,328.23 9,026,528.23
Met Fee and Commission Income: 453,622,682.35 483,622,682.35
Net Inferest, Fee and Commaission Ineome 2 860,692 660.66 260, 692,660,606
et Trading Income - -
Crther Crperating Incame (142,033.80) (142,033,500
Total Operating Incoms 1,860,550,626.86 21.860,550,626.86 -
Imparment change/{reversal) for loans and other lnsses 164,541,794.20 163,673,100.20 (BGE,G04.00) -0.53% Audit Adjustment
Net Operating Income 2,696,008, 831,66 1,696,K77,526.66 BEE,E04.00
Operating Expense
QED.B13,445.71 942,389,702, 77 (47.423,742.94) 4.79% Audit Adjustment
Other Crperating Fxpenses 123,604, 60888 123,029,408 88 (575, 200.00) (AT Audit Adjustment
Depreciation & Amortizmbion 16,374, 838.24 16,374.838.24 -
1,566,215,939.84 1,615, 083,576.TH A48, B6T,636,.94
Won Operating Income 580,078.53 SR0076.53 -
Mo Operating Expense - BGR 654,00 BAE,604.00 TN Audit Adjustment
Profit befare Income Tax 1,566, 796,01637 1,614,794,959.31 47,995,942.94
Income Tax Expense 3B2.590,586.01 415.977,659.03 43,387,073.02
Current Tax 407.260,611.89 556,845,705.21 59.585,003.52 11.98% Audit Adjustment
Deferred Tax (114,670,025 §5) (130,868,046, 1R) (16,198,020,30) 14,13% At Adjustment
for the year 1,184,205,430.36 1,188,817,300.28 4,611,869.92
Profit attriutable to - -
Eguily holders of the Faancil lstiation 1,184,205 43038 1,188 817,300.28 4,611,869.92
for the year 1,184,205,430.36 1,188,817300.28 4,611,869.92
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubltta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Unandited Financial Results (Quarterly)
As at the end of Fourth Quarter (31/03/2078) of the fiscal year 2077/078 (2020/2021)

Rs. In"000
SN |Particulars This Quarter Ending | Previous Quarter Ending cﬁ::;';::’:r ;ﬁ'
1 |Total Capital and Liabilities (1.1 to 1.7) 28,265,565 27,867,138 24,845,389
1.1 |Paid up Capital 1,695, (00 1,695,000 1,500,000
1.2 |Reserve and Surphus 2,801,046 2623473 1,850,230
1.3 |Debenture and Bond - - -
14 |Bomowings 6,320,588 6.739,174 6,945,133
| 1.5 |Deposits (a -+ b) 15,819,201 15383.288 13,341,629
2. Member 14,313,930 13,876,818 11,917,540
Jis. Public 1,505,271 1,506,470 1,424,080
1.6 |Income Tax Linbilities 393,832 306,370 121,862 |
1.7 |Other Liabilities 1,226,798 1,119,833 1,086,535
2 |Total Assets (2.1 t0 2.7} 28,265,565 27867, 138 24,845,389
| 21 |Cash and Bank Balance 515,519 433,257 467,836
22 |Money at Call and Short Notice 543,768 477,014 2,162,438
23 |Investments 1,826,441 1,584,198 600,466
24 |Loans and Advances 24,077,563 24.2TH, 166 20,150,818
25 |Fixed Asscts 175,405 179,511 186,139
26 |Non Banking Asseis - - -
27 |Other Assets 1,126,269 914,992 1,277,692
: Upto Corresponding
3 |Profit and Loss Account Upto This Quarter Upto Previous Quarter Presbous Yoar Quurtr
3.1 |Interest Income 3,506,084 2,582 252 3,162 121
3.2 |Interest Expenses 1365, 744 OR6,923 1,668,883
A. Net Interest Income (3.1 - 3.2) 2,143,340 1,595,329 1,493,238
3.3 |Fees, Commission and Discownt 3BT 24,355 21,705
3.4 |Other Operating Income 464,743 399,376 370,560
3.5 |Forcign Bxchange Gain/Loss (Met) - - -
B. Total Operating Income (A+3.3+3.413.5) 2,640,962 2019060 1,885,503
3.6 |Staff Expenses B, 208 515,507 T57,208
3.7 |Oiher Operating Expenscs 128,966 92,173 1940, 209
C. Operating Profit Before Provision (B-3.6-3.7) 1,705,788 1,406,980 938,086
3.8 |Provision for Possible Losses 4,508,613 750,060 45,565
D. Operating Profit (C - 1.8) (2,803,825) 656,920 447,017
3.9 |Non Operating Income’ Expenses (MNat) (73} 11 3,0
3.10 |Write Back of Provision for Possible Loss 4,262,323 477,551 -
E. Prafit from Regular Activities (D+3.9+3.10) 1,458,425 1,134,482 450,121
3.11 |Fbctmm\d inary Income’ Fxpenses (Meat) 5§ 221 1,230
F. Profit before Bonus and Taxes (E43.11) 1,459,005 1,134,703 451,341
3.12 |Provision for Staff Bonus 145,501 113,470 45,134
3,13 |Provision for Tax 393,931 306,370 121,362
. Net Profit’ Loss (F-3.12-3.13) 919,173 714,863 284,345
At the End of
4 |Ratios Md‘af::: L ki EJ:.T“T“M‘ Corresponding Previous
Year Quarter
4.1 _|Capital Fund to RW A 13.18% 12.46% 12.72%
4.2 |Mon Performing Loan (NPL) To Total Loan 4.11% 5890 1.83%
4.3 |Total Loan Loss Provision to Total NPL 116% B2% 230%
44 |Cost of Funds 6. 74% 7.2 £.55%
4.5 |Credit to Deposit Ratio 152%% 158%% 151%%
Note: Fourth Quarter Report for the financial year 2077-78 has been published as per GAAP.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Principal Indicators

Particulars Indticators X 2 77 2075-T6 207374
Met ProfitTotal Income % 28.06 7.20 20004 19.07 2345

1
2 Per Share Eamning (after income tax) Rs. 7014 15.12 47.57 4526 57.14
3 Market Price Per Share Rs. 1600 1,015 841 1,024 1,963
4 Price { Eaming Ratio Times 77 %] 6712 17.65% 2262 3435
5 Dividend on Share- Bonus Share % 2950 13.68 40.53 4211 30.70
L2 Cash Dividend Y 1.55 .68 15.53 1 14.04
7 Interest Income/Loans & advances b 1498 16.43 1749 17.42 18.92
8 Emplovec expensesTotal Operating Expenses Yo 87.11 £3.04 84,14 £5.42 85.97
g Interest expenses on Deposit & Bomowing b 6.17 8.55 B.70 8.62 6.78
10 Exchange IncomeTotal Income % x a - - -
11 Staff Bonus/Total employee expenses % 19.04 538 14.92 1232 11.96
12 Met ProfitLoans & Advances % 4.94 1.29 407 N 5.07
13 Met ProfitTotal Assets % 4,48 L12 1,56 3.26 421
14 Todal Loans & Advances/Total Deposils % 152,20 151.04 177.75 180.30 197 8%
15 Total Operating expenses/Total Assels Y 4,08 4.18 4,58 4,52 550
16 Capital Adequacy Ratio:

a) Core Capital % 1136 10,61 10.20 10.15 10.73

b) Supplementary Capital % 1.26 1.26 094 2.00 1.80

¢) Total Capital Fund % 1262 11.87 1114 12.15 12.53
17 Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) ] 2.24 240 2 219 134
18 Mon-Performing LoansTatal Loans & Advances % 411 1.83 1.17 0592 031
19 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread EL £.81 T.88 B.T9 5.80 12.13
20 Book Net-worth Bs. 1851,80742 | 265655604 | 245701199 1723732931 147808803
21 Total Shares MNumber 16,950,000 16,950,000 15,000, 00 12,000,000 10,0000, (66
22 Total Employee Number 1,143 1,182 1,102 717 a2
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Number of Centers Number of Active Clients
155,951 374,535 379,495

nndll pnull

2073/74 2074775 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2073/74 2074775 2075/76 207&/77 2077/78
Number of Loan Clients Loan Disbursed ('000)
F9,EK3,501
ILEET. LA
nl 1] ﬂ 7l
2073/74 2074775 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2073/74 2074775 2075/76 2076/77 207778
Loan Outstanding ('000) Savings & Deposits ('000)
ELISHALN 18,819,201
18,341,629
1100448, 944
2073/74 2074775 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2073774 207475 207576 2076/77 2077/78
Net Profit After Tax (NRS. Total Assets (NRS. In Billion)
In Million) sismaz

il

2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78

2073/74 207475  2075/76  2076/77  2077/78
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Shareholders Fund (NRS. In Avarage Rature on Assats: (in 36}

a.48%
Billion) 3.85 o
3.56%

i d

2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78

2073/74 207475  2075/76  2076/77  2077/78

Mon-Performing Loan (In %) 1% Return on Equity (In %)
30.36%

2073/74  2074/75 2075776  2076/77  2077/78 2073774  2074/75  2075/76  2076/77  2077/78

EPS & DPS (In NRS) Capital Adeguacy Ratio (In %)

80.71
i EPS =i DPS 12.87%
LrEFN
1E15%
1187
11540

2073/74  2074,/75  2075/76  2076/77 207778 2073/74  2074f75  2075/76 207677 @ 207778

Closing Price in Nepse (In NRS) Market Capitalization (NRS.
In Billion) -

2073774 207475 2075/76  2076/77 207778 2073/74  2074/75  2075/76 207677 2077 78
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